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Financial Highlights
BTt 22

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
BE-ZEN\HF BE_ZTT+F
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Turnover BEE 232,605 245 082
Profit from operations R 110,199 120,144
Profit for the year REEEF 71,127 76,204
Attributable to: PN 2
Equity shareholders of the Company AARRIEREB A 71,115 76,204
Minority interests DB R M R 12 -
Total assets WEE 562,244 568,596
Net assets BEE 336,760 339,848
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRS GBI
Interim FHES 3.61 3.61
Proposed final BRAEA B 5.52 6.18
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF (BL)
Basic HAR 9.1 9.8
Diluted #E 9.1 9.8
Financial ratios Mgt =
Net profit margin (Note 1) Fom A (faE 1) 30.6% 31.1%
Effective tax rate (Note 2) BIRTE (M 2) 19.2% 21.1%
Current ratio (Note 3) mENLE (M7aE3) 2.12 2.11
Quick ratio (Note 4) RB) LR (M5t 4) 2.12 2.11

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT



Financial Highlights
S E

At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

R-ZZBZENE RZTTLF
+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—8H
'000 ‘000
F B T
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares ERTRACEER

As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 778,306 778,210

Weighted average number of R+-A=+—HEB%17
ordinary shares (basic) outstanding A% A b 3 A B (AN 778,276 778,154

as at 31 December

Note 1
Note 2
Note 3
Note 4

Net profit margin = profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company/turnover Ktat 1

Effective tax rate = taxation/profit before taxation HtaE2
Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities Hiat3
Quick ratio = current assets minus inventory/current liabilities Wit 4

SRR E =R AR EA T E R
BB E =R T B A E T
TEIEE=TEEETTEAE

BEIFE =B EERTFE TTBAE
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“Looking ahead, the long-term [RERK  EFER
prospects of Tradelink look EiE RIS 448 o D
bright. We have won a licence to BT IRRE  ferEin

continue providing GETS services e § _
for another 7 years and a few of ~ GETSHRA% * BEICHF |

the projects we are working on in ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁqj IEEWEP &0

China look promising.”

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S.,J.P. Chairman
FIEEL ses. 0P 25 i
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Chairman’s Statement
FEMES

Dear Shareholders,

As we are now all aware, we are in the throes of an economic downturn, the
scale and length of which we are still trying to fathom. For Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Limited (“Tradelink” or “the Company”), we have not been immune.
In general, our performance works in sympathy with the general Hong Kong
economic performance, which significantly deteriorated starting from October
2008.

For the full year of 2008, | wish to report that Tradelink and its group of
companies (“the Group”) recorded an operating profit of HK$110.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2008. After tax and absorbing its share of loss
from Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo”), the profit
attributable to shareholders is HK$71.1 million. While this is down by 6.7%
compared to 2007, this is still, in my opinion, generally satisfactory when the

overall economic situation is taken into account.

Review

Before | come to the dividend payout, | think it is prudent for us to take a look at
the prospects for 2009. No one is certain whether the economic downturn has
peaked or not. The Chairman of the U.S. Federal Reserve has said he hoped
recovery would start by the end of 2009, if the U.S. rescue measures proved
to be effective. Closer to home, total volume of trade declarations dropped by
23% for January and February 2009 compared to the same period in 2008. As
there are no signs that the recovery of the economy is on its way, we must brace
ourselves for a pretty dismal 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Prospects

Looking ahead, the long-term prospects of Tradelink look bright. We have
won a new operating licence from the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (“the Government”) to
continue providing the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) from
2010 to the end of 2016. We have won another contract from the Government
to provide the call centre services for the Electronic Road Cargo System
(“ROCARS”) of the Customs and Excise Department for five years from the end
of 2009. Despite the downturn in China, a few of the projects we are working on
in China look promising. And more importantly, we are about to complete the
process of buying out the other non-Tradelink shareholders of DTTNCo to make
DTTNCo a wholly-owned subsidiary, so that we will have greater flexibility in
offering more value-adding services to Digital Trade and Transportation Network
(“DTTN") customers and to take DTTN into China.

However, it is equally clear that we will not only begin to enjoy the fruits of our
effort until starting in 2010. Therefore for the rest of 2009, the Company will
be sparing no effort in exercising much tighter cost controls and will also be re-
doubling its efforts in finding new revenue opportunities.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAF
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dividend

Taking everything above into balance, the Board of Directors of Tradelink has
decided to recommend a final dividend payout of HK cents 5.52, which together
with the HK cents 3.61 interim dividend payout for the first half of 2008, will

make a total HK cents 9.13 for the entire year.

This would contribute a 100% payout of the distributable profit to shareholders
for the third year in a row. However, what will be the situation for 2009 remains

to be seen.

The Board would also draw the attention of shareholders to the Company’s
dividend policy. This policy was enunciated at the time of the IPO in 2005, which
is that the Company will pay out not less than 60% of its distributable profit as
dividend. The fact that the Company has paid out 100% of its distributable profit
over the last three years does not mean that the dividend policy has changed.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.s.s., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2009
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We strive to provide the best B AFTE R FIR
value-for-money services to all 1 LB BT E I RS -
customers and to expand our

effort to tap the market potential 3 — 2B R B Y

in China. Fﬁi%‘}%ﬁ 0



I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis
BIEERN WA

Business Review

Tradelink

The Group’s core business of providing front-end GETS services held steady
up until September 2008. Starting from October, the global economic
situation deteriorated markedly, so much so that, year on year, the overall
GETS transaction volume registered a decline slightly by 5%.

In 2008, Tradelink has successfully won a new contract from the
Government to continue to operate the GETS services for a further term
of seven years from 2010 to 2016 (“GETS Il Contract”). Tradelink is also
pleased to have been awarded a contract to set up and provide call centre
services for a period of five years for the implementation of the ROCARS for
the Customs & Excise Department of the Government. Based on the project
plan with the Government, the target launch date of the call centre services
is around the end of 2009.

To cope with the demand of paper-based trade declaration market,
Tradelink has set up three new service centres in Mongkok, Tsimshatsui
and Central in the fourth quarter of 2008, with the objective of offering more
convenient and cost-effective services to the local small-medium sized
business community.

In Tradelink’s effort to develop the China market, we have completed the
transaction to acquire a 20% stake in Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science
& Technology Service Company Limited (“Nanfang”). Since then, the two
companies have been working hand in hand targetting a number of projects
in China. Separately with other partners in China, or on our own, we are
continuing to explore new business opportunities in and around Beijing and
Tianjin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review (continued)

DTTNCo

DTTNCo’s business continued to grow in 2008. While still focusing on
recruitment efforts in Hong Kong, DTTN is now deriving 10% of the
transactions from business partners in China that are connected to DTTN
customers in Hong Kong. This suggests that DTTN should be expanding its
effort to tap the market potential in China.

DTTNCo continued to be in a loss making situation in 2008, a review of its
business model was carried out in early 2008. The study found that the
DTTN model of attempting to be commercial but with heavy Government
involvement as a shareholder and at the Board level was not the most
optimal. Eventually, the DTTNCo shareholders, and the Tradelink Board,
reached an understanding to remove the DTTN Operating Agreement
signed with the Government, as well as the DTTNCo shareholders’
agreement. To effect this, Tradelink would make an offer to buyout the non-
Tradelink DTTNCo shareholders including the Government. The deal has
been endorsed by the independent Tradelink shareholders on 9 March
2009, and the transfer of DTTNCo shares to Tradelink will be completed on
26 March 2009.

The significance of the restructuring of DTTNCo may be summarised into
three areas:

(1) It allows Tradelink to remove a lot of the duplication between DTTNCo
and Tradelink and thereby, would result in significant cost reduction
for DTTNCo;

(2) It would allow DTTNCo to offer its customers more value-adding
services and therefore more effective business solutions to those
customers; and

(3) It would allow DTTNCo to develop and deploy a programme to
promote the usage of DTTN services in China, and eventually the rest
of the world.

¥IEOIEE )

DTTNCo

DTTNCOMEBNR T NFHEL R - EEHME
BUEBAZ TR MENAEIER DTINBERHNRZ S
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review (continued)

Digi-Sign

Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited (“Digi-Sign”) has continued to
chart a steady course and has expanded its scope of services to its bank
customers. Digi-Sign is also eyeing a number of new projects which may be
coming up in 2009 and will be preparing to bid for these projects when they
come up.

Under the Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (“CEPA”) framework,
Digi-Sign has been working together with the relevant government bodies
and stakeholders on facilitation of cross border mutual recognition of
digital certificates and on pilot projects to adopt such mutually-recognised
certificates for cross border transactions between Guangdong and Hong
Kong.

Financial Review

Throughout the year of 2008, the Company had more than 54,000
customers. Turnover for the year was HK$232.6 million. This was lower
than the turnover of HK$245.1 million in 2007 by HK$12.5 million. The
decrease was attributed by a decline of the GETS services as a result of the
deterioration of the global economic situation in the last quarter of 2008.

A modest increase in salaries was awarded to staff in 2008. Staff costs
incurred were HK$80.6 million, above the 2007 figure by HK$1.1 million.
Operating expenses (excluding depreciation) for the year of 2008 were
HK$45.1 million, slightly higher than the amount incurred in 2007 at
HK$44.6 million by HK$0.5 million.

Depreciation charges for the year of 2008 amounted to HK$9.4 million,
HK$1.7 million lower than the amount of HK$11.1 million in 2007.

Profit from operations for the year of 2008 was HK$110.2 million, a
decrease of HK$9.9 million over the amount in 2007.

For the year, the net amount of losses shared from associates was HK$22.2
million, lower than the amount of losses shared in 2007 at HK$24.0 million
by HK$1.8 million.

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company for year ended
31 December 2008 was HK$71.1 million, lower than the profit for 2007 at
HK$76.2 million by HK$5.1 million.

Basic earnings per ordinary share for 2008 were HK cents 9.1 as compared
to HK cents 9.8 in 2007.

¥ IO )
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (continuea)

Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a total cash and bank deposits of
HK$439.5 million (2007: HK$374.7 million). The net assets of the Group
amounted to HK$336.8 million (2007: HK$339.8 million).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no borrowings (31 December
2007: Nil).

Capital and Reserves

As at 31 December 2008, the capital and reserves attributable to the
ordinary equity shareholders were HK$336.5 million, which had decreased
from the amount of HK$339.8 miillion at the end of 2007 by HK$3.3 million.

Segment Reporting

No segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and
geographical segments. Throughout the year, the Group has been operating
principally in a single business and geographical segment, i.e. the operation
of electronic trading services in Hong Kong.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had obtained three bank guarantees
and one performance bond from The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“HSBC”). Two of the guarantees, total at the amount
of HK$2.1 million, are provided to the Government for the due performance
of the current GETS contract which will expire on 31 December 2009.
The other guarantee at the amount of HK$2.1 million, is provided to the
Government for the award of the new GETS Il Contract which will come
to effect on 1 January 2010. The performance bond at the amount of
HK$0.6 million is provided to the Government for the award of the tender
and the due performance of the call centre service of ROCARS. The bank
guarantees and performance bond are secured by a charge over deposit in
the amount of HK$4.8 million. The facility is subject to review on an annual
basis.

The Group did not have any other charges on assets.

The Group has provided a bank guarantee amounting to HK$1.2 million,
in relation to a revolving credit facility granted to KAZ Computer Services
Hongkong Limited (“KAZ Hong Kong”), an associate of the Group. The
guarantee is a continuing security and shall not be released or discharged
until the expiration of six months after the payment, discharge or satisfaction
in full of the guaranteed liability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (continuea)

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed a work force of 278 (2007:
245). 269 employees work in Hong Kong and nine employees are based
in Beijing and Tianjin. The related staff costs for the year totaled HK$80.6
million (2007: HK$79.5 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy is that all employees are rewarded on
the basis of the market salary levels. In addition to salaries, the Group
provides staff benefits including medical insurance and contribution to the
mandatory provident fund. To motivate and reward employees at all levels to
achieve the Group’s profit target, the Group has established a discretionary
performance bonus scheme. Payment of discretionary performance bonus
depends on the actual financial performance of the Group. The Group
also operates two employee share option schemes to motivate employees’
performance.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no foreign exchange exposure and

related hedges.
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Directors and Senior Management
EShEREEE

Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.8.s., J.p., aged 66, was appointed a Director
on 19 September 2000. He is also our Chairman. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Electrical Engineering from the Imperial College, London, the
United Kingdom and a Doctorate from Brown University, the United States.
He joined Textile Alliance Limited (TAL) in Hong Kong in 1973 and in
1983, was appointed Managing Director of TAL Apparel Limited, which
currently employs over 20,000 employees. He was a Director of The Link
Management Limited and of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation. He has over
30 years’ experience in the textile and garment industry. He is actively
involved in a number of trade organizations in Hong Kong. He was the
Chairman of the Innovation & Technology Fund (“Textiles Projects”) Vetting
Committee, council member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is currently the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturer's Association, as well as Chairman of Textile Council of Hong
Kong Ltd. He is also a council member of the Vocational Training Council.
He was named in the Queen’s birthday honours list as an Officer of the
British Empire (“OBE”) in 1996. He was appointed a Justice of Peace (“J.
P.”) in 1997 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star (“S.B.S.”) at the
Fourth Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR in 2001.

Executive Directors

Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin, aged 67, was appointed a Director on 1 August
1996. He has also been our Chief Executive Officer since 1996. In addition,
he is currently a Director of DTTNCo an associate of the Company, being
appointed on 10 June 2008. He had also previously served as a Director of
DTTNCo from 30 April 2004 to 31 December 2007. Mr. YUE has over 30
years’ experience in the trade and commerce industry. Prior to joining us,
he had worked at the executive level both in the government and the local
trading community. He joined the then Government of Hong Kong in 1968
in what was then the Commerce & Industry Department and progressed to
become Deputy Commissioner of Trade, Industry and Customs in 1979. In
1983, he moved to the Transport Branch of the Government Secretariat. He
left the Government in 1985 to join the private sector as a Senior Executive
of Winner Garments Ltd. He is active in a number of trade associations
and advisory bodies including the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
Group, Trade & Industry Advisory Board, Hong Kong Logistics Development
Council, Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers Association and Textile
Council. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurances Company Limited.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a First Class Bachelor
of Arts Honours degree in 1965.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENENEIERE

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, aged 52, was appointed a Director on
2 September 2008. She joined the Company in 1992. She is currently
the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a director of the
Company'’s subsidiary, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, and of the
Company’s associate, Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited.
She previously served as an Executive Director of the Company from 13
May 2005 to 3 November 2006 and from 9 July 2007 to 27 November
2007 respectively. Ms. CHUNG graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Science degree
in Engineering. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. CHUNG worked in the
Government Secretariat of the then Government of Hong Kong for over
11 years providing management consultancy services. Since joining the
Company, she has gained 17 years of experience in the e-commerce
industry. She has a wealth of diversified experience in the management of
the business activities of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Ann, aged 33, was appointed a Director on 20 October
2008. She graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Master of Education
degree. She joined the Government as an Administrative Officer in 1997.
She has since served in various positions within the Government, including
as Assistant Secretary to the Steering Committee on Land Supply for
Housing under the Financial Secretary’s Office, Assistant Secretary for
Housing, Assistant Secretary for the Civil Service, Assistant Secretary for
Constitutional Affairs, Assistant Secretary for Education and Manpower,
Senior Administrative Officer of the Celebrations Coordination Office under
the Home Affairs Bureau, and Assistant Secretary for Labour and Welfare.
She joined the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau in October
2008 as Principal Assistant Secretary (Investments). Her responsibilities
include financial policy for public corporations, evaluation of the financial
aspects of corporatisation, privatisation and infrastructure-related project
proposals, and the management of the Government’s Capital Investment
Fund and the Loan Fund. She has over 10 years’ experience in public sector
administration and management.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENENEIERE

Mr. CHAK Hubert, aged 47, was appointed a Director on 21 October 2002.
He joined Capital Strategic Investment Limited as its Group Chief Operating
Officer in April 2007 and became an Executive Director in June 2007.
He was previously an Executive Director of Pacific Century Premium
Developments Limited and was also the Company Secretary and Director
of Mergers and Acquisitions of PCCW Limited until February, 2007. Prior to
joining the Pacific Century group in 1999, he has worked for a number of
international investment banks in Hong Kong and has more than 10 years’
experience in corporate finance transactions in the region. He is a graduate
of the University of Wales (now known as Cardiff University) in the United
Kingdom and holds a Master of Business Administration degree and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering.

Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric, aged 55, was appointed a Director on 9 May 2008. He
is the Managing Director of Hongkong International Terminals Limited and
Executive Director of Hutchison Port Holdings, both of which are not listed
public companies. Mr. IP is a director of Hyundai Merchant Marine Co. Ltd.,
which is listed on the Korea Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Logistics Development Council and Chairman of the Shipping & Port
Operations Group of Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong. He has over 20
years’ management experience in shipping and container terminal fields.

Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans, Michael, aged 47, was appointed a Director on 9 May
2008. He is the Managing Director of GCIS Limited. Mr KIHM has over
20 years of experience in financial management. Prior to founding GCIS
Limited, he had been with Allianz Group for 14 years where he held senior
positions in asset management, mergers & acquisitions and corporate
finance. Prior to joining Allianz, he had worked for 3 years as a consultant in
treasury management. Mr KIHM has been awarded the CFA charter by CFA
Institute, Charlotteville, USA, a Master’s degree in Management from ESCP-
EAP, Paris, France and Master’s degree in Mathematics from University of
Ulm, Germany.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENENEIERE

Mr. LO Sze Wai, Albert, aged 59, was appointed a Director on 13 May 2005.
Having joined Cathay Pacific Airways Limited in 1993, Mr. LO was the
Manager for Cargo Hub Operations before taking up his current position
as Manager for Cargo Services, with responsibility for the system-wide
cargo operations. He is also the Chairman of Carrier Liaison Group, which
is a forum primarily consisting of airlines and ground handling agents
at the Hong Kong International Airport and dealing with matters related
to air cargo, mail, courier and express cargo handling. Prior to joining
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, Mr. LO was involved in cargo operations
at Pan American World Airways and United Airlines respectively before
embarking on freight forwarding operations at Benson Air and Sea Cargo,
NAF Airfreight, Danzas and Infolink in Hong Kong and Canada respectively.
Mr. LO has over 35 years’ experience in the cargo and freight forwarding
industry.

Mr. WEBB Lawrence, aged 50, was appointed a Director on 11 May 2007.
Mr. WEBB is responsible for HSBC’s Trade and Supply Chain business
globally, a role which he has undertaken since April 2007. Prior to this,
he was responsible for HSBC’s payments and cash management activities
across 21 countries and territories throughout the Asia-Pacific region. He
joined HSBC in 1981 and has worked in various countries and territories
throughout the Middle East and Asia Pacific, undertaking various roles in
transaction banking, systems development, relationship management and
strategic planning. Mr. WEBB holds a bachelor degree in management
sciences from the University of Manchester and is an Associate of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy, aged 59, was appointed a Director on 11 May
2007. He has over 20 years of experience in financial advisory, taxation
and management. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and
retired in June 2005. In October 2005, he joined a professional consulting
firm, Russell Bedford Hong Kong Limited, as Director-Tax & Business
Advisory. Mr. Chung is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). He was the President of the
Hong Kong branch of ACCA for the year 2005/06. He is currently also an
Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the audit committee
of Fittec International Group Limited and Lee Kee Holdings Limited, both
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

BN@ERE AT RZETAFRAT=—BEZ
TAREE - BAEER—NAN=ZFNBEREMEERD
Al EEEEROELGLE  RECTEERBLE - 8
EEEZFHEELE - thhAME AR HES A
FF - ZER—EFEdRMZE AT REBREREEST
ARG RIBAEKARIE - RIPEZE - 8 - HE
IR KRR BRI EIE « MARRMZEBRAFR - &
o4 8 55 BlJ£2 B Pan American World Airways K2 B4 fi
Z2 2 A) (United Airlines) BB - B D BIEEH
M hnE K Benson Air and Sea Cargo * NAF Airfreight
Danzas K Infolink (¢ S EEXTS - BEATEEEXHRE
iR = T RFER -

WEBB Lawrence %t 4% * Ai+5%  R-ZZZTHFRA+—
HEZTAEE -WEBBLAE_ZT+FMNARKE
EELRITHEZHE S REEEER - RETHBHS
ZH B EBREYRTESTABR -+ —EAERRkitE
M RMESERER - bR —NWN\—FMAEZR
17 WEEPRMEAERZEBRRRMEIE R
ST ZHFE - BRTELRBAS T EmETZE
B - WEBB LAERBERITFASEERE 2428
i WAREIRITEGE &8 -

BYHHITES

EREELE At s R-TTEERA+—BEZR
FAES - R BERN  BBEEE T EEEsR —1
FieEp c RZTTRFNARKE - B AREFKE
SEAIEBZERA - R ST RF+ANMAZE
EEZRIA FIRussell Bedford Hong Kong Limited » HEEF
BREBBERERAE - hEHB AT - HAHKE
FRERFHARETNACTEE - ¥R ZTTRF
ECTTAFHEARESTARSHAMAGEESE
FE o BRI AR ERREERRA R RFZERE
RARIRBE IR TEEREZEZESERF - LlAA
HEBBHARZMARAR LT -




Directors and Senior Management

SENENEIERE

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, aged 48, was appointed a Director on 13 May 2005.
Mr. HO is the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council. He
has over 20 years’ experience in the Shipping and Logistics industry. As
he now shapes the thrust of the Shippers’ Council mandate as the voice
of the Hong Kong shippers, he has considerable experience in aspects
of trade and transport of goods. Prior to the Shippers’ Council, he was
Deputy Managing Director of Swire Shipping Agencies and Taikoo Maritime
Services Ltd, gaining experience in liner shipping, warehousing and
distribution, freight forwarding, container haulage, mid-stream operations,
China feeders, transport and logistics services. Mr. HO is a member of
the Port Development Advisory Group of the Port Development Council,
the Port Operations Committee, the Logistics Industry Training Advisory
Committee, and the Transport & Shipping Committee of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce. He is heavily involved in various working
groups of the LOGSCOUNCIL. He was appointed as the Chairman of
Logistic Committee of the Chartered Institute of Transport and Logistics of
Hong Kong for 2003-2004, a member of the Dangerous Goods Standing
Committee for several years and Chairman of the Hong Kong Liner Shipping
Association for 1993-1995. He is the current Chairman of Hong Kong
Logistic Management Staff Association, Council Member of the Chartered
Institute of Logistics & Transport in Hong Kong, Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing (Hong Kong), and Advisor to the Chamber of the Hong
Kong Logistics Industry and Shenzhen Ports & Harbour Association. Mr. HO
was appointed Justices of the Peace by the Government in July 2008.

AMEEE WOt \K R-EZEAFHEAT=RAEZ
ERES - EERBENEAZEGZHITHRSE
RMERDRITERBB - +F 28R - [ELEHES
LEZESREERER  WESEENEAZEEK
RREBENEAZ RS - RIMANEBAZEEZ
Al A RAEHE(RE)BRARTIALEEEARZE
BREKE  BETESIES  ARICX BERE -
W& - PIRIEE - A BREMRRE ZER - [
EERBBEORRBE T 2B OERZHA/NME - BO
THEBZEE  MRXHIHKAZEENEEEES
BREMBEEZEGZKE - R BEYRERBZ TR
THENEERZER - RSB =FF _TTNFRE
RERBEEBVARZEMARZESRTR  RBELER
REEBEZEERBZF AN NN=FE=—NNE
FREEREECHNRHE LR - WRATEMRER
ABHEEFER BEEBVASEEHRE  FEM
BEgkt  FEMRBEAIEOHBEERM - [k
ERZEENFLABBNRERKFHL -




Directors and Senior Management

SENENEIERE

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 59, was appointed a Director on 2
September 2008. Mr. Wu graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1972. Upon graduation, he joined the then
Government of Hong Kong and served as its Trade Officer and subsequently
Administrative Officer until 1989. Afterwards Mr. WU served in the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) as its Director (Intermediaries
Division) from 1989 to 1992, its Executive Director (Intermediaries Division,
comprising the Licensing and Intermediaries Supervision Departments)
from 1992 to 1994, and its Deputy Chairman, Chief Operating Officer
and Executive Director of Intermediaries Supervision Departments from
1995 to 1997 respectively. In 1999, Mr. WU joined the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) and acted as its Advisor until 2001. From
April 2001 to July 2002, he served as a commissioner of the Strategy &
Development Committee of CSRC and the Deputy Chairman of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. He subsequently joined SW Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited and acted as its Chairman (China Region) until June 2004. Mr. Wu
is currently an independent non-executive director of SW Kingsway Capital
Holdings Limited, Shenzhen Investment Limited and First Mobile Group
Holdings Limited (all listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) and First China Financial Holdings Limited (listed on
the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Wu was
an independent non-executive director of Interchina Holdings Company
Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with Stock Code: 202) between 1 September 2005 and 26 August
2006.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENENEIERE

Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George, aged 64, was appointed a Director on 28
November 2006. He holds a Bachelor's Degree (Honours) in Economics
and Political Science from the University of Hong Kong. He attended post-
graduate studies in Harvard Graduate School of Business in 1974, Oxford
University in 1982 to 1983 and INSEAD (European Graduate School for
Business Administration) in 1995. In 2003, Harvard University Kennedy
School of Government admitted Mr. YUEN to its Leadership Program. In
February 2006, Mr. YUEN was granted a Fellowship for Non-profit Leaders
by Centre for Social Innovation of Stanford University. Mr. YUEN has
extensive experience and connections both locally and overseas particularly
in governmental, business and media sectors. In 2003, he was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Ltd. and as a member of the Central Policy Unit
(“CPU") of the Government and sat on the CPU Panel on Pearl River Delta
Panel until 2007. Mr. YUEN had been Chief Executive of the Better Hong
Kong Foundation for nine years since September 1997. Prior to joining
the Foundation, Mr. YUEN had acted as Deputy Director-General in the
Information Services Department of the then Government of Hong Kong.
Before his civil service career, Mr. YUEN held management positions
in Nestles (Hong Kong) and Sterling Drugs (International) Inc. He is the
founder director and vice-chairman of the “HK Society For the Aged”. He
is also Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Guangxi Autonomous Region of China; Special Advisor, China National
Committee for Pacific Economic Co-operation Business Forum (PECC);
Advisor of the Institute of Finance & Trade Economics of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences; Advisor of the Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences of China; and Advisor of the Board of International Investment of
Guangzhou Municipality of China. In October 2006, Mr. YUEN was invited
to join the Consultative Committee for the Center on China’s Transnational
Relations of the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology. Mr. YUEN
is also a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. On 20 March 2007,
Mr. YUEN was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
LeRoi Holdings Ltd.
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Senior Management

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, aged 58, is our Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. As the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Mr. LI is
responsible for all our financial management activities including financial
accounting and reporting, treasury, budgeting, financial planning and
control. He has over 30 years’ experience in finance and accounting.
Prior to joining us in 1997, he held the post of Senior Manager in the
Finance Division of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited. He holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration, a Master of Science degree in
Logistics and a Master of Science degree in Finance. He is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United Kingdom and
is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. LEE Wai Han, Margaret, aged 41, is our Chief Operations Officer and is
responsible for the management of activities in the areas of marketing and
sales, customer services, training and service centre. She joined Digital
Trade and Transportation Network Limited, our associate in 2007 and the
company in 2008. Ms. LEE has over 20 years experience in marketing
and sales with which 15 years on business management in IT related
industries. Prior to joining us, she was Strategic Program Director in Intel
Semiconductors Ltd. Ms. LEE graduated from Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree (Hons) and a Master Degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University EMBA Program.

Mr. YUEN Kam Ming, Alfred, aged 46, our Chief Technology Officer, is in
charge of all our technical service activities. He has more than 20 years’
experience in the industry of information technology, and has been with
us since 1993. Mr. YUEN graduated from the Simon Fraser University of
Vancouver, B.C., Canada, with an honours degree in Computing Science in
1986. He then spent his early stage of career development in The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, aged 39, is our Chief Development
Officer. He joined Digi-Sign, our subsidiary, in 2002. He has over 13 years’
experience in IT related business. He was involved as a technical specialist
in a consultancy proposal on the setting up of a Public Key Infrastructure
(“PKI") by the Government. He holds a Master of Commerce in Information
Systems from the University of New South Wales, a Master of Engineering
from the University of Sydney, a Bachelor of Engineering with Honors in
Electrical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a Bachelor of
Science from the University of Sydney. Prior to joining us, he was a Manager
of Professional Services in Baltimore Technologies Limited.

EREEE

FEERLE  B+//\5 - UBEERRRMWE - (EAX
RAZHBRE  FEEABEARBMEVBEILE
8 BREPHERER B BE - MBakE
7o FEAREREGH T HARAFBB=TFLR - 1N
—NANEFMAREE 2R - FERERBEEABRAD
AR RS - IS A TREESRLEM - ¥
TRE2IR A+ 20T & BRI ERE 12T o fh BB
AEEGMAGRBEEEMAGZEER

FEMLZLT T AELAE BETEMSHE
KIHE - RPRY - B RBRBH O - MR =TT F
MAREENBLE N REIEE FEHPRARAR > B
ZEEN\FNAKRAT o MATISHERE R IHE B ES
B TFEER  ERTRFREMBRITERENED
BIRAEER o MIIAAREERD - 17 Intel Semiconductors
Ld. BSREETHE £ 5 - MEXNEBR AL Brtg
REgmataly Y AEg B EEEEITREN
TrEERELTE0 -

RIBIAKE - W BRITRE - aEAEEZAA
RITRISER - thE — AN =FRRAEEIE - RE
ARHRITEEABR - TFER - RAEETE—NNRF
AINE KRR :F4 852 2 Simon Fraser UniversityS 3£
IS BRI BB EBEN - REERERINEEL
TRELRITERARIFRAEE

ERBEASGE - — TN EBRRAE - R ZTT =
FE AL E 2 B A F Dig-Sign © ARG+ =F
2 EATMEHTABRIS R - M2 EBT R AR RS RLE
B ([ ARERE])  (EREFZARZEE CRMES -
thANERR T ABEMAAHEELT BEAZEZ
TREBBEL  BEARBERTRELBTREL A
ERBZIEBEL - RIMAREEZH] - fth & Baltimore
Technologies Limited 2 B2 RS SPATIE ©




M

We are committe i HTSEE # 5 =K
gok\]/lgrngt\acnedggcct)i o IESSEIA T R
safeguarding share NS i S AR
iInvestment and the Co

assets.




orporate Governance Report
e

The Company has always committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Great effort has been made to comply with the
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").

Internal Controls & Risk Management

The Board of Directors and Management have always emphasised the
need to maintain a sound and effective system of internal control and risk
management as a means to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets.

As part of the on-going process, the Company has during the year continued
to assess its internal control system with reference to the COSO (The
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission, 1994)
internal control framework. Efforts were made to assess the Company’s
internal control system against the five elements of control environment,
risk assessment, control activities, communication and monitoring. In
addition, the Company has also carried out a high-level risk assessment
review. The review was conducted in the form of a self-risk assessment
process completed by relevant department heads supplemented by
some high-level and independent risk control tests conducted by the
Company’s Internal Audit Department. This assessment review covered the
Company’s operations in Hong Kong and its associated key processes and
sub-processes. These process and sub-processes could be categorised
into strategic management, core business processes and resource
management.

Based on the results of the above assessment and review, the Board is
satisfied that the internal control and risk management system of the
Company is both adequate and effective. The Company will continue to
place great emphasis on the need for good corporate governance and an
effective internal control and risk management system in the years to come.

ARAB—EBNERRKFOEERERER - WiRHE
STEBMARBMERAR([EBBRAT)ES LHHR
AT LR D s+ mprdm b e e B R AI(T1
FERTRI) PrE ST AR -

REREEE R A b E

EXEgLEREBRIGBREARNANEZELARE
BEL  IRERRNRERAABNEE

FERN - AAREEZEAANBEIEREF - 28R COSO
(The Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission, 1994 ) il 5T AR ES IR HE 2R 4548
SHEE A EIE RS - IRIBEIEIRIT - EBRATAL - BEE
EE  BRREEENEEER  BRYAEEN AR
ERFELFTE o tboh - RDBINETT S E R ET
i - BRHBAEMIIIE EATKA B RAREEH AR
RRRANBEZIPVETE TS E RIB AR B EA
AL HETT - LAIRRERATNEENEEREGH
WEZNREIEF - ZERFEDRRBER RO
BREREREHG -

RIE DRFHE R OER  EEFHRARFTTRR
BRH AR MEREIE RS - HRTME - AAT]
R REFEEERFEENERE R ARSI
ERERBES -




Corporate Governance Report
PEREBHREE

Board of Directors

The Company is led and controlled through the Board of Directors, which
is constituted by two Executive Directors, seven Non-executive Directors,
including the Chairman of the Board, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The four Independent Non-executive Directors have all confirmed
in writing to the Company that they meet all the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board oversees the overall management and operations of the
Company. Major responsibilities include approving the Company’s overall
business, financial and technical strategies, setting key performance
targets, approving budgets and major expenditures, supervising and
scrutinising the performance of management.

There is no service contract between the Company and the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors. They have no fixed
term of service with the Company but will be subject to rotational retirement
and re-election requirement at annual general meetings pursuant to Article
100 of the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to that Article,
about one half of the Directors shall retire but may be eligible for re-election
at each annual general meeting.

The Board has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules and the Directors have fully complied with it.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board with
reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Meetings 25

Pursuant to relevant provisions of the Articles of the Company, the Board BIEANTSENABIEY &5
meets regularly for at least four times a year, i.e. at approximately quarterly REHe3s  MAAYESEHe —
intervals. In addition, special meetings of the Board will be convened if the SREBAEEReE  c N—FE

situation requires so. During the calendar year of 2008, the Board convened

SEHABRN\XREH  EFOHE

a total of eight times and the attendance of the Directors are tabulated as

BAGFRMNKIW
Koo WS BEEIN
Ai@@iﬁ’%%
KH|RWT -

follows:
Number of meetings
held while Number of
being a Director meetings
ERESK attended
Name ] BHNERRH HEEBAE
Chairman xE
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.8.s., J.p. FThEB L sB.s., J.P. 8 8
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHAK Hubert R E 8 8
Mr. LO Sze Wai, Albert EIUMESE 8 7
Mr. WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence %t 4 8 4
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans, Michael KIHM Lutz Hans, Michael 4 5 4
Date of Appointment: 9/5/2008 ZFHR : —FEENFRAANA
Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric HEESLE 5 0
Date of Appointment: 9/5/2008 ZEAY —FEFENFRANH
Ms.CHAN Wai Yan, Ann EMit 2 1
Date of Appointment: 20/10/2008 LAY  —FZENF+HA=+H
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKHITES
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy BB 8 7
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny (ERVE-S S 8 8
Mr. YUEN Kam HO, George RenEkAE 8 8
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RFESLLE 3 2
Date of Appointment: 2/9/2008 ZEARY —FENFNLA=H
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin B4 8 8
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TEc#83)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily EIBR A2 3 3
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer) (BI7TE 4B E)
Date of Appointment: 2/9/2008 ZFHR  —FEENFNH=H
Directors retired/resigned during 2008 —ZETN\FHEEE BENES
Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing IR IE 3 2
retired as an Non-executive Director on 9/5/2008 REZFZNFAANARIHHTESE
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth WFXE 3 1
retired as an Non-executive Director on 9/5/2008 REFENFAANARTHHTER
Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin ,ﬁii’i?ET@i 3 3
retired as an Independent R—EENFAANARTEIHBTEE
Non-executive Director on 9/5/2008
Ms. Nardi Kar Wai, Agnes $*ﬁﬁi 4 4
resigned as an Executive Director on 27/6/2008 EENFNA - EAFTFHTESE
Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David %Jé’f@ﬁﬁ'ﬁi 6 4

resigned as an Non-executive Director on 9/10/2008

RE-BENFHANAGEHHITEF
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Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Accounts

The management provides the explanation and information to the Board to
facilitate its informed assessment of the Group’s financial and other matters
put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and that
judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
applicable laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The Board has prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Group are disclosed
in the “Report of the Auditors”.
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Committees of the Board

The Board has established the following committees: the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of 4 Non-executive Directors; 3 of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

. Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) (appointed as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 14 May 2008)

. Mr. CHAK Hubert

. Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George

o Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (appointed on 2 September 2008)

. Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin (Chairman) (resigned as a member and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 9 May 2008)

The Audit Committee oversees the overall financial reporting process as
well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
In addition, it is responsible for making recommendations to the Board for
the appointment, reappointment or removal of the external auditor. It also
reviews and monitors the external auditor’s independence and objectivity as
well as the effectiveness of the audit process to make sure that it is in full
compliance with applicable standards.
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Committees of the Board (continued)

Report of Audit Committee
In 2008, the Audit Committee met four times. In addition to reviewing and

approving the various audit plans and audit reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Department of the Company, it also reviewed the interim and financial
reports of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During 2008, the audit and non-audit fees payable/paid to KPMG was made
up of an audit fee of HK$0.6 million (2007: HK$0.6 million) and a non-audit
related service fee of HK$0.03 million (2007: HK$0.03 million). The latter
represented taxation service fee.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of four Non-executive Directors;
three of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

° Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George (Chairman) (appointed as a member and
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 14 May 2008)

o Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.s., J.P.

o Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny

o Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (appointed on 2 September 2008)

o Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) (resigned as a member
and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 14 May 2008)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Board based on
the advice of the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
responsibilities with the Company. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee convened two times and made recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Committees of the Board (continued)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three Non-executive Directors; two of

whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

° Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny (Chairman)

. Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.s., J.P.

. Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (appointed on 14 May 2008)
. Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George (resigned on 14 May 2008)

The main duty of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to select suitable Board members.

The selection of individuals to become Directors is based on assessment
of their professional qualifications and experience. During the year, the
Nomination Committee met two times to discuss matters related to the
appointment of Board members.
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With the dedication,
perseverance and
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professionalism of the Directors,

senior management and staff
members, we will continue to
bring the long-term interests

and benefits to all customers
and business partners.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principle place of business at 11th and 12th
Floors, Tower B, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end GETS
services for processing certain official trade-related documents.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year
is as follows:

EFERANZBBRRSBE_SEN\F 127
=B R E BB -
TRERMBR
ARTUEBBEMA LI AES BAME - HRHEER

FTEEEWD - MR EBEBENERESREST D
BEEIIEER 1218 o

FEXK

AARMEEEBRRMEEE TBNEREZ XM
Al GETS BR7% ©

AARIMBARMNEBES R EMABHRTHRE
Kiat14 -

ITEFEFREER

FEMNEHBER - REBES REEEA BIETH
St RRWAR T -

Percentage of the Group’s Total

HEREBAENE S
Sales Purchases
SHE® BB
The largest customer BREF 1.0%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFART 3.2%
The largest supplier SAHER 7.3%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARBEEEET 16.7%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

REE EENBBALHRESHAEEALRDH
TR 5% A EREMAR - WEHES ER T2 RPN
frERs (Ef s -




Report of the Directors
E=gREE

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out in the
financial statements on Pages 47 to 121.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$71,115,000 (2007: HK$76,204,000) has been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cents

5.52 per share (2007: HK cents 6.18 per share) for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 22 1o the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.Ss., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily  (appointed on 2/9/2008)
Ms. NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes (resigned on 27/6/2008)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAK Hubert
Mr. LO Sze Wai, Albert
Mr. WEBB Lawrence
Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric  (appointed on 9/5/2008)
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans, Michael
(appointed on 9/5/2008)
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Ann  (appointed on 20/10/2008)
Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing (retired on 9/5/2008)
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth  (retired on 9/5/2008)
Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David  (resigned on 9/10/2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny

Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (appointed on 2/9/2008)
Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin  (retired on 9/5/2008)

Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this report are shown on
Pages 14 and 20.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin, Ms. CHUNG Shun
Kwan, Emily, Mr. CHAK Hubert, Mr. WEBB Lawrence, Mr. CHUNG Wai
Kwok, Jimmy, Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George, Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Ann and
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael shall retire from office in accordance with
Article 100 of the Company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Two Directors, Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David, who resigned on 9 October 2008
and Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Ann, who was appointed on 20 October 2008
are civil servants of the Government, and accordingly may be regarded as
interested in all contracts and other dealings between the Government or the
Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) and members of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Directors’ Service Contract

During the year, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Details of the two
Executive Directors’ employment contracts are set out below.

On 8 December 2008, the employment contract between the Company
and Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin was renewed for a period of one year
commencing 1 January 2009 until 31 December 2009 in relation to the
appointment of Mr. YUE to act as Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The contract can be terminated by the Company or Mr. YUE by giving three
months’ notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Under the employment contract between the Company and Ms. CHUNG
Shun Kwan, Emily dated 20 March 2008, Ms. CHUNG has been acting as
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 3 September
2008. The contract can be terminated by the Company or Ms. CHUNG by
giving one month’s notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin and Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily are also
Directors of DTTNCo, an associate of the Group.

Save for the disclosed, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin, Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company currently holds 1,142,000 ordinary shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

Mr. KHIM Lutz Hans, Michael, Non-executive Director of the Company
currently holds 718,000 ordinary shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO.

The Directors of the Company have been granted options under the
Company’s share option schemes, details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Schemes” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interest or short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002
respectively and a share option scheme on 14 October 2005 whereby the
Directors are authorised to invite employees of the Group, including its
Directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a nominal consideration of HK$1.00 per grant
under the share option scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The share option schemes give the participants an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company and help motivate the participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency and attract and retain participants
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability
of the Group.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The total number of share options which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under all share option schemes shall not exceed in
aggregate 10% of the issued capital or 77,763,250 shares at the Company’s
listing date, being 28 October 2005 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options
that have lapsed shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by
obtaining approval of shareholders in general meeting of the Company
provided that such the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option schemes under
the Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares
issued at the date of approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options
previously granted (which may be cancelled, lapsed or exercised) shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Under the Pre-IPO share option scheme, no option could be granted to
any grantee, so that the grantee would, taking also into account options
previously granted to him, be entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the
aggregate number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

a) Pursuant to the Pre-IPO share option scheme approved on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002

The granting of share options commenced on 24 November 2000
and has ceased upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the SEHK on 28 October 2005. Each option has a 10-
year exercise period. Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the listing date, the relevant grantee may exercise up
to 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised in the
option (less any number of shares in respect of which the option has
been previously exercised). The exercise price is the lower of HK$0.9
and 80% of the IPO price. On 28 October 2005, the IPO price was
fixed at HK$1.25 per share.

b)  Pursuant to the grant of options approved on 22 March 2005

At its meeting on 22 March 2005, the Board approved a fresh
allotment of share options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
to all permanent staff. The grant was made conditional upon the
successful listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
the SEHK. The terms are the same as those for the grants as stated
above, except that the exercise price shall be equal to the IPO price or
HK$1.25 per share.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme

At the general meeting of the Company held on 14 October 2005, the
shareholders approved and adopted a share option scheme (including the
Pre-IPO share option scheme) with the following terms:

a) The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel and to provide additional incentives to
employees, directors, consultants, business associates and advisors
to promote the success of the Group.

b)  The Board has the absolute discretion to offer any employees
(whether full-time or part-time), directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), consultant, business associates or adviser
of the Company or any company within the Group options to
subscribe for shares, provided that the total number of shares issued
or to be issued to any one grantee in any 12 month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. The grantee shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant
upon acceptance of the offer of an option. The share options granted
under the share option scheme vest after 12 months, 24 months and
36 months to exercise 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the share
options. Each option has a 10-year exercise period. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share option upon exercise of an
option shall be determined by the Board and shall be not less than the
greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK's daily quotation
sheet on the date, which must be a business day, written on
such option (the Date of Grant);

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the shares.

c) At its meetings on 19 March 2007 and 14 April 2008 respectively, the
Board approved an allotment of share options under the Share Option
Scheme to all permanent staff. The terms are the same as those
stated above in (b).

B EREl 2

MR RECHE
BERZZTTAF+ATHERTHRERS L - #f
TR MR 2 (BIEE R ARBRATERES2) -
HEHMT -

a) BREFENHBEN ZTARSILRREZREFA
A AREHAKENOKY  RES EF -
B - FBBH SRR R RN ER -

b) EFSURENBRAARAIAEEETEFAR
AMEMERRBES £F (2EBIFN
TTEE)  BER - EBBHAHERBERELER
B ERATRBRG - ERNMERT ZEARSE
TR BT T EMARANBRD BB SEBAR
RAED BTN 1% o HNBIIE R - &
BRARRAARRRXZNABRELOOT  ERERE
BENREAXRE - £+ @A - —+HEAR
=HAREAR - REBEER SR AR
THER - AT BT A BB ARIER 25%  60% K
100% - B BAREA THTEE - RITERBK
EmARSNBERENNRENER  BHESR
SEE - ATELRTIIEEFNRS

() REBEENZEZHER(RLEH]
HUAREER)  REBBXXMERHRE
RETDIBAD VMR THE

(i) BEERHAHAESER REBBEX
P B mER DI D FE BB XA F
EHE - R

(i) RPEE -
) SHIRZEELF=RATABRZZZNFNOA
THARZEZ L  EFSHAERBBRETER

Fie & EIIE B AL B BARE - (BB X (b) HFR
AR -

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FER -



Report of the Directors
E=gREE

Share Option Schemes (continued) BRETE e
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the
Company granted for nil consideration under the share option schemes of
the Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.

No. of options Effect No. of options Market value
outstanding as at of options outstanding as at pershare  Market value
1January  No. of options lapsedupon  No. of options 31 December at date per share
2008 granted  termination of exercised 2008 of grant  on exercise
RZBENE during  employment during  RZEENE of options*  of options*
-B-H the year R LE theyear +=A=1-A Exercise Exercise price  REBRER BhRE
HATHEN ERRLN FEMAN ERTTEN HATEN Dategranted ~ period pershare  HAHER THEESR
BREHE  BREBE NERENTE  BRESE  RREHE RHRE  ORE  BRORE RONGE* RENTE*
HKS HKS HKS
B o BT
Directors £
YUE Kwok Hung, Justn ~ RFEE 1,762,500 - - - 1,762,500 24/11/2000 10 years 090 - -
105
1,762,500 - - - 1,762,500 13/12/2001  10years 090 - -
105
982,900 - - - 982,900 14/10/2005  10years 1.25 - -
105
2,032,962 - - - 2,032,962 06/06/2007 10 years 143 143 -
105
- 2,557,881 - - 2,557,881 14/04/2008 10 years 1.01 1.01 -
105
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily $%/BZ 400,000 - - - 400,000 24/11/2000 10 years 090 - -
(appointed on (R-FZ)1F 105
02/09/2008) NAZFEERF) 400,000 - - - 400,000 13/12/2001  10years 090 - -
10%
396,845 - - - 396,845 14/10/2005  10years 1.25 - -
105
415,243 - - - 415,243 19/03/2007  10years 142 142 -
105
- 483,760 - - 483,760 14/04/2008 10 years 1.01 1.01 -
105
Employees &8 1,805,000 - - (24,000 1,781,000 Grantedin 2000  10years 090 - 1.00
RZEETEEREN 105
1,845,000 - - (24,000 1,821,000  Grantedin 2001 ~ 10years 090 - 1.00
RZFE-FRL 105
765,000 - - (24,000 741,000 Grantedin 2002 10 years 090 - 099
RIFTZERY 105
305,000 - (16,000) (24,000 265000 Grantedin2003  10years 090 - 1.00
RIFT=FRY 105
105,000 - - - 105,000 Granted in 2004 10 years 0.90 - -
RZFEMERY 105
9,667,566 - (509,981) - 9,157,585 14/10/2005  10years 1.25 - -
105
6,431,062 - (408,898) - 6,022,164 19/03/2007 10 years 142 142 -
105
- 7,251,121 (43,538) - 7,207,583 14/04/2008 10 years 1.01 1.01 -
105
Total @t 29,076,578 10,292,762 (978,417) (96,0000 38,294,923
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of the
Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in Note 1(n)(ii) and Note 21
to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interest in the Company’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2008 amounting to 5% or more of the
ordinary shares in issues:

B EREl 2

BT R ()
BRYEEMBERE  DEAEFNAERHEANESN
BHEER -

¥ AR EBRR R EERETTIE A RZ FTA9 I PR E -

ARACEHOERE R SR ERENEFSENS TR
KHER - D RIEREISIREM L 1(n)(i) BATEE21 -

B EXAIN - AR B HREME R BN FEAERERE -
BERISLEM R BUABEAAREEEBARAE
AT MEMEA B M o

FERRREMATRES REE
R ERR AR

BARBA  RZZENF+-A=+—BEARF
BEITRMF - HACEITEBRA 5% kA R
PR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each

BREEBY%0.20 tHERR
% of total
Registered Corporate Number of  issued shares
shareholders interests shares FTHEERTR
AR DRIER RGEE HEAHESL
Substantial shareholders FERRE
The Financial Secretary BE R RIREE
Incorporated 95,673,000 - 95,673,000 12.29%
Other persons Hit AL
HSBC Holdings Plc ELERERAR - 63,125,000 63,125,000 8.11%
The Hongkong & Shanghai 5B LSEL
Banking Corporation Limited FITHR AT 63,125,000 - 63,125,000 8.11%
Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG* Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG* - 62,200,000 62,200,000 7.99%
DJE Investment S.A. DJE Investment S.A. 62,200,000 - 62,200,000 7.99%
* The Company received an email from DJE Investment S.A. on 31 July 2008 to the * ARER=ZEZENE+ H=+— HYFDIE Investment
effect that Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG had been renamed DJE Kapital AG since 1 S.A.2 E#H - FZEBAEALDr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AGE B
July 2008. ZEZTN\F+A—HEES A DIE Kapital AG »
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

The register of interests in shares and short positions kept under Section
336 of the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by HSBC Holdings plc is
the same as the 63,125,000 shares disclosed by The Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, its 100% owned subsidiary and the interest
disclosed by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG is the same as the 62,200,000
shares disclosed by DJE Investment S.A., its 81% owned subsidiary.

Apart from the above, the Company had not been notified by any person
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as at 31 December 2008, which was required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions

During 2008, the Company entered into (or continued to be party to) certain
transactions with the Government and the FSI. The FSI has been our
largest shareholder and connected person. The Government, holding the
Company’s shares through the FSI, has therefore also been considered as a
connected person.

Although these transactions were “connected transactions” as defined in
the Listing Rules, all of them were either sharing of administrative services
or de minimis transactions respectively exempted under Rules 14A.33(2)
and 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules from all reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

On 17 May 2006, the Company entered into a Business Support System
(“BSS”) Development and Service Agreement with DTTNCo. DTTNCo is a
connected person of the Company as it is a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules, while FSI beneficially
owns more than 10% of the issued shares of the Company and DTTNCo
respectively.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZHRAF

FTERREREMATARG RIEEH
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FEERECMER  ELERERATMEENER
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63,125,000 f& %15 B [E — #LhA% {5 - X Dr. Jens Ehrhardt
Kapital AG P 5% #) 4 21 B EL 1 5 81% BV I 8 2 ] DJE
Investment S.A. AT 1 #& #9 62,200,000 A% A% 17 71 /& Rl — #t
B&tn o
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Connected Transactions (continued)

DTTNCo outsourced the development and operation of its BSS to the
Company under the Agreement, pursuant to which DTTNCo shall upon
the signing of the Agreement pay the Company an initial costs of HK$2.14
million for the development of the BSS and the related information system
infrastructure set-up. The maximum fixed fees payable by DTTNCo to the
Company during each year of the term of the Agreement are as follows:

BERXS #)

IR¥EZ M - DTTNCo #5 E BSS 2 B3 ] &5& THESM
FARE] B - DTTNCoZBNE AT sk ek & » MAR
A1 2,140,0007T - 1F/RFI3 BSS RiZRMARE
HASEREZFEM ° DTTNCo R F AT FRE

RNFPARRZE=EEERAT

Year 1 ended Year 2 ended Year 3 ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2007 2008
E—FBZE E_EBZE E=EBZE
“EERE —EEtF —EENE
+=A=+—-HA1Et +=ZA=+—-HIL +=ZA=+-—-HL
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Initial set-up costs LR A 2,140,000 - -
Maximum fixed monthly charges E=ETAE 200,000* 200,000 200,000
Average monthly extra charges BEEPEM R
on customer registration BRAFHEINER
and administration — 30,000 35,000
Average monthly extra charges BEXREZFAFHEINER
on incoming call - 40,000 90,000
Average monthly extra charges on billing BEEKEFAFHREINER - 37,500 87,500
Average monthly subscription fees AP RFEME 200,000 307,500 412,500
Maximum annual subscription fees EaFERFftE 3,640,000 3,690,000 4,950,000

* Assuming monthly charges cover seven and a half month for the year 2006.

The Board has reviewed and the Independent Non-executive Directors have
confirmed that the BSS Transaction (the “Transaction”) for the year ended

Y BRRABERE —FENFFELEEA -

EXgCENEE—TT/\F+_A=T—RLFEXN
BSSXZ 5 ([ZEX5])  BIFMITERTCBRZE

31 December 2008 was entered into: RGZFITY
(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; () BARFTHER—REHRE

RIERREGER SR TERARRRBLFE=T
RO E PSRN - &

(i) either on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the (ii)
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

NERBRERHRZ AT REENER LA
BARABIBRRERN S -

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms (iii)
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rule, the Board engaged, KPMG,
the auditors of the Company to perform the agreed upon procedures on the
Transaction which:

(i) has received the approval from the Board;
(i) is in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such Transaction; and

(iv)  has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the relevant announcement.

The auditors have confirmed to the Board in writing in respect of the
Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2008 that the Transaction:

(

) was recorded in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the Transaction;

(i) was approved by the Board of the Company on 26 April 2006;

(i) was entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company where the Transaction involve provision of goods and
services by the Company; and

(iv)  the total amount received and receivable by the Company in
connection with the Transaction did not exceed the relevant cap
amount as set out in the announcement dated 17 May 2006.

On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into a contract with the
Government relating to setting up of a call centre and the provision of call
centre services by the Company for the Road Cargo System (“ROCARS
Contract”). As explained above, the Government is a connected person of
the Company and therefore the setting up of a call centre on a one-off basis
constituted a connected transaction and the provision of call center services
on a continuing or recurring basis over a period of five years constituted a
continuing connected transaction under the ROCARS Contract.

Pursuant to the ROCARS Contract, the Government shall pay the Company
an one-off cost for the setting up of the call centre and during the five-
year term of the ROCARS Contract, shall also pay the Company a service
charge per call multiplied by the number of calls subject to the annual cap
disclosed in the relevant announcement dated 24 December 2008.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZHRAF
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Connected Transactions (continued)

In accordance with the ROCARS Contract, the production rollout of ROCARS
and the provision of call centre services are scheduled for September 2009.
During the year, no transactions have been entered into under the ROCARS
Contract.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company did not have any bank loans and borrowings as at 31
December 2008.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on Page 122 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. Particulars of these retirement
schemes are set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

Confirmations of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.s.s., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2009
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The Board has adopted the Model Code. Directors have been specifically
requested to observe the Model Code when dealing in the Company’s
securities. According to the Company’s record, all Directors have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2008, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

The Register of Members will be closed from 5 May to 8 May 2009, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by share certificates and transfer form must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 4 May 2009.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents
5.52 per share (2007: HK cents 6.18 per share) for the year ended 31
December 2008 to shareholders subject to the approval of shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final
dividend will be paid to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 8 May 2009, on or about 20 May 2009.

On 9 October 2008, the Company paid an interim dividend of HK cents 3.61
per share (2007: HK cents 3.61 per share) to the shareholders. The total
amount of 2008 interim dividend paid and 2008 final dividend payable is
100% of the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for 2008.

The Board would also draw the attention of shareholders to the Company’s
dividend policy. This policy was enunciated at the time of the IPO in 2005,
which is that the Company will pay out not less than 60% of its distributable
profit as dividend. The fact that the Company has paid out 100% of its
distributable profit over the last three years does not mean that the dividend
policy has changed.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 47 to 121,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
iR A as

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE2 =TT\ F+=—A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE T F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE BT T BT T

Turnover B 3 232,605 245,082
Interest income FEUA 12,681 10,186
Staff costs BERHA 5(a) (80,639) (79,474)
Depreciation e (9,383) (11,065)
Other operating expenses HEA RS (45,065) (44,585)
Profit from operations R HR 110,199 120,144
Share of results of associates Py NCIE ¥ (22,222) (23,955)
Gain on partial disposal of an associate o BB = A R SR M A Y M 15 - 345
Profit before taxation BREE AR A 5 87,977 96,534
Taxation ] 6(a) (16,850) (20,330)
Profit for the year REERA 71,127 76,204
Attributable to: LU A FE(E

Equity shareholders of the Company RARREREA 22 71,115 76,204

Minority interests DEHA R 22 12 =
Profit for the year REEEF 71,127 76,204
Dividends payable to equity shareholders AEERAGAATREFEARE

of the Company attributable to the year: 11
Interim dividend declared during the year REEEIRF L 28,097 28,091
Final dividend proposed after the balance HEEBBBEIRARHS

sheet date 42,962 48,093

71,059 76,184

Earnings per share (HK cents) BREF GEWL) 12

Basic E- N 9.1 9.8

Diluted i3 9.1 9.8

The notes on pages 55 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEAE

As at 31 December 2008
R-FEFENFEF—F=+—H

2008 2007
—BENE —ETLE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE BT T BT T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Fixed assets Eil=y-3 13(a) 41,461 44,547
Interest in leasehold land held for RELEHEFEE AN
own use under operating lease HE iR 13(a) 5,484 5,626
Interest in associates Pk YN Fa 15 42,539 43,020
Other financial assets HEtigEE 16 - =
89,484 93,193
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 17 18,401 19,381
Other receivables and prepayments o qth pE W R TE K RS ROR 14,876 11,974
Other financial assets HEi s EE 16 - 69,342
Deposits with bank RITIFIR 5,124 188,500
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEE 434,359 186,206
472,760 475,403
Current liahilities REBAE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and FERTERIR « PR FIE &
other payables H A e K08 18 220,046 221,479
Taxation 18 7(a) 2,438 4,142
222,484 225,621
Net current assets REEEFE 250,276 249,782
Total assets less current liabilities EEATERAREBERE 339,760 342,975
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Provision for long service payments REIRRTG S B 19 2,282 2,173
Deferred taxation EIER IR 7(b)(i) 718 954
3,000 3,127
NET ASSETS EERE 336,760 339,848

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT




Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEERER

As at 31 December 2008
R-EFENEF—F=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE BT T BT T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE 22(a)
Share capital f&Zx 155,661 155,642
Reserves fEE 180,819 184,206

Total equity attributable to equity AATRERFE AELERERE

shareholders of the Company 336,480 339,848
Minority interests DEIRRER 280 =
TOTAL EQUITY R A 336,760 339,848

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March REFEN_TTNF=H - THBRERRET)E

2009

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, $.B.S., L.P. T

Chairman ZTh/EE 58S, LP.

YUE Kwok Hung, Justin HITEE

Executive Director REHE

The notes on pages 55 to 121 form part of these financial statements. FEH5EFE 121 B 2 M BRI EHREM—2 5 o
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Balance Sheet
BEEAER

As at 31 December 2008
R-FEFENFEF—F=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE BT T BT T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Fixed assets & E & B 13(b) 40,612 43,404
Interest in leasehold land held for RELEHEFEEAN
own use under operating lease HE iR 13(b) 5,484 5,626
Interest in associates [Pk NGIL Fa 15 41,637 43,020
Interest in subsidiaries JEiE Y SV NGIL: Fa 14 3,010 10
Other financial assets Hth g EE 16 - =
90,743 92,060
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FEUYBRFX 17 18,010 18,977
Other receivables and prepayments o R U TR N BN FOE 14,290 11,309
Other financial assets HtisEE 16 - 69,342
Deposits with bank RITIEK 4,000 188,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEE 433,297 185,922
469,597 474,050
Current liabilities REBAR
Trade creditors, accounts payable and FERTERSK - B FRIB R
other payables H b FE(S5RIE 18 228,010 226,517
Taxation | 7(a) 2,436 4,509
230,446 231,026
Net current assets MEEERE 239,151 243,024
Total assets less current liahilities EEABRABEE 329,894 335,084
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Provision for long service payments RERG 2 B 19 2,127 2,038
Deferred taxation EFEFI IR 7(b)(ii) 627 776
2,754 2,814
NET ASSETS EEFE 327,140 332,270

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT




Balance Sheet

BEERER

As at 31 December 2008
R-FENFF+=FA=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz BT T BT T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE 22(b)
Share capital f&Zx 155,661 155,642
Reserves fEE 171,479 176,628
TOTAL EQUITY e 327,140 332,270

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March
2009

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.
Chairman

YUE Kwok Hung, Justin
Executive Director

The notes on pages 55 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ARSI

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE—TEN\F+—A=+—HIFEF

2008 2007
—EENF ZEREAEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT B¥TT A%T
Total equity as at 1 January R—B—BWEREEE 339,848 329,223
Net profit for the year AN F A 71,127 76,204
Attributable to: AR AL FEAG -
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIRIERB A 71,115 76,204
Minority interests DHRR R 12 =
71,127 76,204
Dividends declared or approved NEEE RFRE SR
during the year EO)dsy (76,196) (67,776
Movement in equity arising from HEXARZEENERSE :
capital transactions:
Shares issued under share BB ERT BB T 2 IR (D
option scheme 86 147
Equity-settled share-based transactions  LAMHEEE 2 RIDE R 1,627 2,050
Minority interests arising from the FERMBARIEEZ
investment in a subsidiary DEHI R 268 =
Total equity as at 31 December RT+-B=+—HHEREE 336,760 339,848

The notes on pages 55 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mAEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE2 =TT\ F+=—A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE T F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE BT T BT T
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation Br AT A 87,977 96,534
Adjustments for: G
Depreciation e 9,383 11,065
(Gain)/loss on disposals of fixed assets HEBTEEE (W), EiE (12) 9
Gain on partial disposal of an associate HEBE R R E D E A IS 15 - (345)
Interest income B A (12,681) (10,186)
Share of results of associates Py aNCI ¥ 22,222 23,955
Equity-settled share-based payment DRELEE 2 RNER 1,627 2,050
Foreign exchange loss bE 5 &8 876 =
Operating profit before changes in RETEEESEBAN
working capital R 109,392 123,082
Decrease in deposits with bank RITIF RS 182,983 1,500
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other FEUER TR ~ H b RIREIE &
receivables and prepayments TEftEIE (3G m), R (1,821) 3,640
Decrease in trade creditors, FERTERIR ~ PRI 3IE R EH A
accounts payable and other payables FERIE R (1,270) (1,177)
(Decrease)/increase in customer BEFES ORd ), SN
deposits received (55) 688
Cash generated from operations KREELNBESHRAE 289,229 127,733
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BB BRSH (18,790) (24,374)
Net cash generated from KEEBELENRSFE
operating activities 270,439 103,359
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
I\T\ fﬁium%i‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FTENFF+—A=1—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
bzt BT T BT T
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets HERETEBEMSHIE 30 3
Proceeds from disposal of EEREEIHAES
held-to-maturity securities FTiSzE 68,719 =
Payment for purchase of fixed assets Eﬁﬁlmﬁﬁﬁﬁfiﬁ?ﬂﬁ (6,173) (4,913)
Payment for investment in an associate AN R  F0AR (22,194) =
Interest received I ETESS 13,174 9,800
Net cash generated from investing activities REFBHELNEREFE 53,556 4,890
Financing activities RUESEE
Proceeds from shares issued BRI IR 8317
under share option schemes f& 15 P S 50E 22 86 147
Dividends paid to equity shareholders BEATARA Bl
of the Company FHARE (76,196) (67,776)
Equity contribution from DERR R E
minority shareholder 268 -
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEETANE SR (75,842) (67,629)
Net increase in cash and RERRESEE
cash equivalents EhnEEE 248,153 40,620
Cash and cash equivalents as at R—A—HBH®W
1 January ReRALEE 186,206 145,586
Cash and cash equivalents as at R+=—A=+—8HK
31 December BHeRREEE 434,359 186,206
The notes on pages 55 to 121 form part of these financial statements. FEO5EFE 121 B Z MBI BHREN —5 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS MR

1.

Significant accounting policies

1.

TEETEE

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK™). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008, comprise the Group and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a)

B2 8

A BHRIIEMAERNEBY RS
R ([ IE 2R ) mBEMAK - ZF?
ANEBEHEMAE (AT )R
h—ERN AN ERSEER  FEE
SRR (TSR ER ) MR BREARRE
FHRAIZ G - L FRB RFE(FER
ARGDMBREREEHAIZMAERRD
A([BRMRAM ) ES EmRR (T TR
ADPERNEERTE - ARERANE
REHBRBMEHIIMOT -

PR AR
BE-TTN\F+-A=+—AILEEN
BAMBRE - SEAEENREEEA
A A RS

RAPRBAERERR - TR LKA
TERFTEEE -

REIT AT EMBREEINZHBEHRERT
ZERBHEHAE - G RRR - M%F
HE - B RBRREFERRZERARE
= BE WARFAXHWREEER - %F
EFF RAARERR - HREAERERLZ(E
HEEEBBERATESENHEMERIEE
B HERKAEEEEEAKBERME
CARFNEERABNREERELH
ETEVERE - BRERA LB RINZ Mt o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R TSR I RE

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. EESTBEE)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgement made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with significant risk of material adjustments in
the next year are discussed in Note 28.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i) Transaction fees, handling fees and registration fees
Revenue is recognised when services have been
provided to customers.

(i) Annual subscription fees
Revenue is recognised on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the period of the subscription.

(iii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

TESHBERGE)

THEEEERBREERBERZKRAR
REHTERBERBR (AT 10)) 715 -

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 1.

(d)  Fixed assets (d)
The following items of fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (Note 1(i)):

FIEERAMEREE L FaE
T BEERATFEEEERBEA
HAETHNAFEY HE
(REfZ 1) + ®

- buildings held for own use which are situated on —
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see Note
1(h)); and
= other items of plant and equipment. — HSREEEE o
HRESIHERETEAEEBEZRE  HHE
item of fixed assets are determined as the difference between Fr R IBF AR EBIEE REBE A=

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item B WASRESKHERR  ElRERPE
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or e

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an

disposal.

FEIREEEEERBNEFAEASE
R NEAERERGEFTRISEE(WE)
FHE - DAMEHERCAR - BT ¢

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements lower of 5 years or HEYEEE 5 F sk IR TE HR
the remaining term MEPEREE
of the lease

Platform hardware and software, AR R B
computer and office equipment 3-5 years EF D SE NN 3-5%F
Motor vehicles 3 years RE 3F
Furniture and fixtures 5 years RIREE 54F
Building 20 years BF 204F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(BEZESR: 39 G i NS R 0= PN VN
REHTR - ZBEEMNKA - ARG EE
EEZHOZHEOE - ME—MHAEE
FHERITE - BEN A EAFHRFSREE
(B HETFETER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R TSR I RE

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

F

A

EE R (E

(e)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly and indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

by

=

EEBER(E

(e)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note 1(i)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s
net assets. The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associates.

(e)

ML E R DBCRES (&)

RINDBR G 2 BRI BEFE IR
NEZ M BB MM RER D
BERZE—FBREGUREEFAE
BRI - BRODBRRAAERLED
RAZEBILBRENELTBEINEE AR
R AIBRSN o P E R R ERERFEF -
FREZE RN R E A KB 2 s
BHZERI R AEEPTAE 2 D BRREGE
BREIWEAL

ERARBINEERBERY  WBRARK
B Th IR AR AN T DR (E S 18 51 BR (R AT A7
1(1)) »

NG
BERNBREAEERADAATUHEE
BEFEEATENINER  RF2HEK
M RQERRENE R - BRI
BEHIEERE -

REERRNEE - REESEEZEEY
BRRIIR - WEEAKAARR - A&t
AEBEZBERRNFEE  ERER
MEEEHEE - FelRERREEASE
BFTEEEE A RIRBB R MIBRTR R4 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MRS R R M oL

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

A

F

EE R (E

()

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(i)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value can
be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

- Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets and are initially stated at fair value. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R M

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TESHBERGE)

(8

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

- Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the balance
sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note
1(i)).

- Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note
1(i).

- Investment in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment
losses (see Note 1(i)).

- Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

(g)

HitEERRAFFRE (&)

— AEER/IRARRBEREIRE
BRAZIHANEHMESRES &
BRARERIMAES - KEED
Hi B B 5 Ty S X A BB (B B 1R 5
ANBEEBRER(RAE 1) °

- RIERTTIS LT 5 R (E R IR AN
BE - WELASEFEEAFE - A
REERBEREKAR LR EERRE
RRAZ13)) °

-  TERALEMERINESRE &
FREAAHEEES - ATFERSE
HABHFE - R TREBEIN  F
AAERSERERSTHER (L
Bt 103)) °

— RERERAEBR/SARDREH
BE/HERESINE EREER/ R
BREERR o

HEEE

WAKERERX -—BR-BXHE— X5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R TSR I RE

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FEEFHBE#E)
(h)  Leased assets (continued) (hy MHEEEGE)

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating NEAEEFZAKEHECHEENS
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to o BRIEEREEEEZEEFTE
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods AEFEARREZ S —E%E - THISREMR
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis EEHMMR - EHRBREN ST HIRH
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived A LEBEERR KRR - ASHHEER
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised By - ERFTIEM BB FHENFEE
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease H—E05 » ERERER - KAHESRE
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss EEzgsHE - BURERFHBR o

in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is IR ST SR 3t 2 WS AR - £7
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease EEAHARIL B AR R R o
term.
(i) Impairment of assets () EERE
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities () EBERRBRIZERERAMERS A
and other receivables JBt1E
Investments in debt and equity securities and other TRRK A S S NS (B sk B A A 4
current and non-current receivables that are stated at ENEBHRRAERFIRE - AREM
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for- MEERIERENFEWGIE - AR FEL
sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date BRETRN - UEEREE MR
to determine whether there is objective evidence of BURENR o (AR ETR
impairment. If any such evidence exists, any impairment DR EEERIE T 5175 BT M
loss is determined and recognised as follows: R
= For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the —  BHRAARSIERFE ETARANE
impairment loss is measured as the difference EmE O REBBESRYKE
between the carrying amount of the financial asset EREEEBEGHERERE
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted WREMEZZFTE - M
at the current market rate of return for a similar MEFEBRLE  AKREU
financial asset where the effect of discounting is BB EMIRITT S E R R T
material. Impairment losses for equity securities IH o BAESFRREEE
are not reversed. Tahm -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TESHBERGE)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

(i)

BEREE)
() EBERBREESLKEREMERS R
JR1E (A7)

AR B AR DI (B Y B U R
o BRI ERRIA - AR
HitPBEEMS - LRERS
BRREERIERE AR
RenEREME 228t
B YRITBRNERATZEBR

 RUBEENREERF
A ANFERZEEE
R ENERNE) -

-

Hig - EREBERBEBMRE
L - A RER IR AT SR (B & 1R
HREBEEN S ERIE -
ZEREBENEEBRER
B[ - EEIRERBE - TEE
BEEREERLBRRBESF
It 48 i 570 Rk LS 18 P 78 O
2R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS FRR M 5

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESHBEE)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- fixed assets;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease; and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TESHBERGE)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(i)

BEREE)
(i)  EfbEERE &)
- ERREER

BEAENREE(KEMB
MRSEEEM) SREATKR
B $EREy - BAE R AR
RBERE - LIRS EEEM
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS FRR M 5

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

FESTBERGE)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ifi)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see Note 1(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of unquoted equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

(j)  Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see Note 1(i)).

(k) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESHBERE)

(h Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(1)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

() BBETHBER BERIERE

(i)

(i)

BEETHHER
MBEREABREE (BIERA)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MRS R R M oL

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

FESHBEKR(E)

(m)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R M

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FEEFBE#E)
(m) Income tax (continued) (m) FTi8%i (&)
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on EEFIBREEREEEXBENERRA
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying BEEEEENEEER MREEBER
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or ERKEREROTETE - BLERIBE
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax ERaEIEERR -

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each BERIBEEENROENSFEEBET
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no B WE R AR el & B SRR R A
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to PAMEI R A B RIIEEYS - QEERIIEEE
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction T LABIR o ZERERER £ A B SR
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient TimAA ] ge L IR AR o

taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and REATRIB AR E T IB A5 17 R H 8 - 9%
movements therein, are presented separately from each B RSIRE TS EREE - AHBRFHEE
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against EMEERBEERSEANG N ANESR
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred B SERE R LA ZR BRF T8 & e 4K 8 A8 B 7 18
tax liabilities if, the Company or the Group has the legally BE WARFEUTHBERENBRT
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax 7 BT LA 55 BII 4 $5 7R BR R 18 & B AR E B IE
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: afE:
-~ in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the —  AHFHEEEMAE  AQEEAE
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a B8R FREEELE  EEHRE
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability ENRRSERE

simultaneously; or

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they — EEHBEEMARS : SLEEME
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation BV ARRE - AR A TR —
authority on either: THEWWH BT A
—  the same taxable entity; or - [F—(AEHERE X
- different taxable entities, which, in each future — TRAMNEHEE - SLERT
period in which significant amounts of deferred SRR REBRERIBA &
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or NEEFEFE  ELEFRIE
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets & B Al AU [E] /Y 1B R 2R HA R
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis RFREER AR IEEEME
or realise and settle simultaneously. EBASBHEAEREETEREE
WREHEEEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MRS R R M oL

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TESHBER#E

(n)

Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to those share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the liabilities or capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R M

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FEEFBER#E
(n)  Employee benefits (continued) (n) [EERA#E)
(iii)  Provision for long service payments (i)  REPRIE 2 #EE
Provision is made for potential long service payment BB ABRAIEAFELHERAANER
obligations that may arise upon cessation of employment EEMELEMNBERIARESEEM
of the Group’s employees in the future, to the extent that B - WRRAZFUBES IS R
there is a reasonable probability that the amounts are HERTRERK BB TR - XS RHBEER &
likely to become payable. Such provisions are made on REERBREARESHES - £
a systematic basis, taking into consideration the age, BAREREFER « FHENXIREE
salary, and years of service of the employees who may B B RGMANFE -

qualify for such payments in the future based on their
past services rendered.

(0)  Translation of foreign currencies (0) HNE]E
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated FRRINER 5 - 12X 5 B BRSNS
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. BE INERBUMEREEREBE
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign B E A RINETE RIBE - HINEEZ SR
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling B H BB SR ER -

at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms IEERAGEMEBEEREBE 1
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using B 5 BHNIINEERBE o N RE
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. iR A TFEENIIEEEEEREE -
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign AIREE AT EE HINESIERRE -

currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong BINETSHEIEER 5 H R HNEERBL
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign REXRRE BT BERGBRIAR (B
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance AN _ZTTAF-HA—HBsizelEZ
sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of TBINETSE A 2 P9 ) BIIR A E B BV IE =R
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are HEREBET - MEANER ZHESBBEEER
translated in to Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange RERERERD ©

rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate component of

equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of HEFINERSE - BRI R
the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to BINPEEB RFTER ZH S BIEET
that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit HHEMRTIHEER o

or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. EESTHBEE)

(p)  Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if:

(0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediates, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venture;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in Note 1(p)(i) or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or any entity that is
a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R TSR R M

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

TESHBERGE)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Changes in accounting policies

(@ HERHAEFE
AeMREEERIRTEFALTFER
& - FHRRRITHNE MY BHENEHF
F o AREBRMRSEEEHIRERR
BZEEA A ABRERSE NBERNE
T MEFREMAAZNEEZPEAR
o WHEBANER={EHRZNE -

(N DEbHRE
DEBRIEAEE AT BHEERE D &4 K26
D LIRS E RERIS (BB D E) » k&

— (RS TER R R RS R (it
B2 ) (EES - &0 HORRAEETE
18R -

DERIRA - X - ¥E - BERAFEER
BEEFBE 08 URAMREEMEE
DECEZ D RFHIA B M - D EBE AR
X REESABAER INEE—EEst
HREANSHEE(REBEEMNELE
) FTELE MR AHEEE -

BT BRNEE

The HKICPA has issued the following interpretations and an
amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group and the Company:

HK(IFRIC) 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions

HK(IFRIC) 12, Service concession arrangements

HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and their interaction

BREFMASCBM NRERBEMBRE
ERER]  RERBERETSRAKERARF
AEETHMERER :

FE(BRMBRERBERES) REF 1R
BEVHHESELE2 K- RERBEFRNRS

BB (EARMBHREREZES)REBEF 125
BRI AT 2 HE

B8 (ERUBRE2EREY)RBE 4%

R EFENE 19 R —RERNEEZRF - &
BESBERMME ZHERE
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.

B BRNEE (#)

Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement, and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as either they were consistent with
accounting policies already adopted by the Group or they were not
relevant to the Group’s and the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see Note 29).

Turnover

BEGRTERIF I RIEFT - SR TE « #RE
B8 REBMBHELRE7 - SHMTH: K
E-SREEZENOR

MZEFTBR—3 ERKRERARA]ZEE
WA - WREBEEMBRSEREHHAE
B2 IS mARELEAEATE -

AR BN AN S5 BRI R A ) i R AT
FIERIRRE (RATE29) °

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end
Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for processing
certain official trade-related documents. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Turnover represents the value of services provided and goods
supplied to customers. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

ARABNERER  SRERHEBEETBRRABE
SXMHHRTRIRTEF B 5R% ([GETS]) - K8
RAEAMEBEBFE - SRR Z 14

EEEOREARPIRHRBERMERERNEE -
FAEREERERNZ EEWEIERE NS
T

2008 2007

—EENF —TTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Transaction and handling fees RGNREE 206,939 219,155
Annual subscription and registration fees FBNELE 17,263 17,317
Others HAib 8,403 8,610
232,605 245,082

Segment reporting

7 BRI &

No segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Throughout the year, the Group
has been operating principally in a single business and geographical
segment, i.e. the operation of electronic trading services in Hong
Kong.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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5. Profit hefore taxation

5. BRBiA&EF

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRI AT FIE F0ER

2008 2007
—BENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(@)  Staff Costs: (a) BB :
Contributions to defined contribution REHFGRIR
retirement plan FHEIRI R 2,195 2,133
Equity-settled share-based payment LA RS 45 B 3 LA
expenses & 2 R 1,627 2,050
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 76,817 75,291
80,639 79,474
(b)  Other items: (b) HAIER :
Auditors’ remuneration %A NS 658 568
Depreciation e
— assets held for use under —IRBEEHERFE
operating lease FHRANEE 142 143
— other assets —Hi&EE 9,241 10,922
Operating lease charges in respect of YEREETHER
properties 1,127 937
Net foreign exchange loss b 3, s 18 F 2 876 =
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6.

Income tax in the consolidated income statement 6.

mEWBERNAE

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) #HEMEKRNTRIES
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong REEEBFESHEE
Profits Tax for the year 17,138 20,631
(Over)/under-provision in AR EE (BREakE) BB
respect of prior years (52) 341
Deferred taxation EIEFIIA (181) (642)
Effect on deferred tax balances as K—A— HRER RSB
at 1 January resulting from a BT AR T2
change in tax rate (55) =
16,850 20,330

In February 2008, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (the
“Government”) announced a decrease in the Profits Tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong as from the year ended 31 December 2008. This
decrease is taken into account in the preparation of the Group’s
and the Company’s 2008 financial statements. Accordingly,
the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 is calculated
at 16.5% (2007:17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year and the opening balance of deferred tax has been re-
estimated accordingly.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates:

R-ZZBTENF_A PEARKMEEE
FHTBREEA(BRADEMEEE—F
ZENF+ZA=+—RLFER  #FEF
M KB 17.5% FAME 16.5% * BRATHE
BERARARBUREE 2 EEXE - A
BRARBRBEE _ZTN\EHPBEHRRE
ERRRERREREER Y - Bt
TR N\EFENEHBEVRFE G
JERBUE ) 16.5% (—FEA4F 1 17.5%)
FHE - RERBARNRGESITEAREERS

i T8 7 () B e S A #2285 R ) 1 BR a0
T

2008 2007
—ZTEN\F BT LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Profit before tax BREE A& A 87,977 96,534
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated — BiFIERIEZRER 2 FIEH
at the rates applicable to profits TR BR B B s A FT &
in the countries concerned MBEFIA 14,516 16,393
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses JER] FHUR B S TR IS R & 4,499 4,934
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FEFE R ARG 2& (2,083) (1,782)
Effect on deferred tax balances as R—A—BREB RS IR
at 1 January resulting from a TRIBGERRM 2
change in tax rate (55) =
(Over)/under-provision in prior years AR S GRBERE) BET R (52) 341
Other differences Hih=%a 25 (56)
Actual tax expense ERRIEY T 16,850 20,330

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT




Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

7. Income tax in the balance sheet 1. EEEERNMEH
(@)  Current taxation in the balance sheets represents: (a) BEASBRNAHTIES :
The Group The Company
TEE FIN/NE|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF ZBENE —ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT IT BT T BT IT
Provision for Hong Kong REEFBFEH
Profits Tax for the year B 17,138 20,631 16,687 20,155
Provisional Profits Tax BT EEFSR
Paid (14,700) (16,489) (14,251) (15,646)
2,438 4142 2,436 4509
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (b) BERIELERHEAE :
(i) The Group (i) FEH
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised ERtRa BE A ERERELERIE
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements BEMMARKE D RFERESINT

during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
related
depreciation
EEREY
BT E
HK$'000
BT T
Deferred tax arising from: KE FFEBEELFE -
As at 1 January 2007 R-ZEZ+F—HA—H 1,596
Credited to RERE MR
consolidated
income statement (642)
As at 31 December 2007 R_ZEZtF+-_A=+—H 954
As at 1 January 2008 R-ZBZENF-—H—H 954
Credited to consolidated REZEWERTTA
income statement (236)
As at 31 December 2008 R-ZBBENFE+=-A=+—H 718
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7. Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 1.

EEEERNAEH(E)

(b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised (continued):
(i)~ The Company
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet and the movements during the year
are as follows:

ERRNELRARE @)

(i) AZA]
EREEABRERNECHAEAR
AR D AR FRZEEINT

Depreciation

allowances

in excess of

related

depreciation

EERESY

EEITE

HK$’000

BT T

Deferred tax arising from: KE T2 EEEERE -

As at 1 January 2007 R-EZtF—H—H 1,340
Credited to income statement RIREERETA (564)
As at 31 December 2007 RZBZLFF+_A=+—H 776
As at 1 January 2008 R-ZZN\F—H—H 776
Credited to income statement RUERETA (149)
As at 31 December 2008 R-ZEENF+-HA=+—H 627
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8. Directors’ remuneration 8. EEMe
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the REEBLNFUENIE 161 IEEBENEESME 1B
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: N
Basic
salary,  Contributions
allowances to Share-
and other retirement hased 2008
benefits schemes payments Total
Fees EXREHE - 2H BB Bonus* NfE  —BBENE
re REMEF FTEIfR ALY BERNIA FoHy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Executive Directors BTES
YUE Kwok Hung, Justin R - 2,552 12 1,729 383 4,676
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily  &IBEf - 569 4 - - 573
NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes ZRE - 978 6 - - 984
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry FThiE 20 - - - - 20
CHAK Hubert 3 20 - - - - 20
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BFX 7 - - - - 7
CHEUNG Yiu Sing SRR 1 - - - - 1
WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence 20 - - - - 20
LAU Kam Kuen, David 25K 15 - - - - 15
LO Sze Wai, Albert s 20 - - - - 20
KIHM Lutz Hans, Michael KIHM Lutz Hans, Michael 13 - - - - 13
IP Sing Chi, Eric BRE 13 - - - - 13
CHAN Wai Yan, Ann BREMR 4 - - - - 4
WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin =AM 42 - - - - 42
HO Lap Kee, Sunny IRV 110 - - - - 110
YUEN Kam Ho, George ReE 140 - - - - 140
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy &4 140 - - - - 140
WU Wai Chung, Michael Rz 46 - - - - 46
Total @it 617 4,099 22 1,729 383 6,850
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8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEME (&)
Basic
salary,  Contributions
allowances to Share-
and other retirement based 2007
benefits schemes payments Total
Fees EAH© - EH RIKEF Bonus* NEE  —EEtF
ik REAEF] BE 5 T ERRSH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT BT BT
Executive Directors HTES
YUE Kwok Hung, Justin REIH - 2,550 12 1,871 271 4,704
KO Kai Wai, Kelvin [SF 4 - 1,920 6 - - 1,926
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily ~ &&IBE¢ - 629 5 - = 634
NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes ERE - 189 1 = = 190
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry FThiE 20 = = = = 20
NG Chik Sum, Jackson RER 7 - - - - 7
CHAK Hubert 3 20 - - - - 20
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BFX 20 = = = - 20
CHEUNG Yiu Sing RIEAK, 20 - - - - 20
CURRIE Alistair CURRIE Alistair 3 - - - - B
WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence 13 - - - - 13
LAU Kam Kuen, David 26 20 - - - - 20
LO Sze Wai, Albert B 20 - - = = 20
WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin BAMH 130 - - - - 130
HO Lap Kee, Sunny EVE=S 110 = = = = 110
YUEN Kam Ho, George ReE 140 = = = = 140
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy B 81 - - - - 81
Total Foy 606 5,288 24 1,871 271 8,060
* Bonus represented actual bonus paid during the year. * TEAIEFAE N ERIEAL -
The above emoluments include the value of share options granted FIMe - BERBEAAFNBRETERTE
to certain directors under the Company’s share option scheme as TEENBEREARHBPNGEAEE . LT
estimated at the date of grant. Details of these benefits in kind are M= BEERESS WSS [BRiETE] —
disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Schemes” in the Report ERHi R -

of the Directors.
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9. Individuals with highest emoluments 9. BEaHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2007: FR AAREGALTBEE=2EE(Z2Z
three) are directors during the year whose directors’ remuneration are F: =) HEEMSERNWZSHE - AR
disclosed in Note 8. The remaining emoluments in respect of the five LEEFATHHRTHSAT :

individuals with the highest emoluments are as follows:

2008 2007
—BENE  -TT4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMARe 4,819 4,028
Discretionary bonuses EETEAL 238 172
Share-based payments LARR D AETEH) S - 250 276
Retirement scheme contributions RINEFFT B R 35 31
5,342 4507
The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest emoluments A& ZERT ATHMESEBHERT
are within the following bands:
2008 2007
—BENE —EELF
Number of Number of
HK$ BIT individuals individuals
AE A
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 0 1
1,500,001-2,000,000 1,500,001-2,000,000 3
Over 2,000,001 3@ 2,000,001 2 1
10. Profit attributable to equity shareholders 10. REFEE ARG RR
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders RNATIIREZEAE AFEEZEE BN B IESE K
of the Company includes a profit of HK$69,353,000 (2007: 69,353,000 7T (—ZEZ 4 : 164,964,000 7T )
HK$64,964,000), which has been dealt with in the financial HEA - ERARR RN EHRER P ERIE o

statements of the Company.
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11. Dividends 11.

IRE

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (a)

AERENARRBERE ARNRE

attributable to the year
2008 2007
—EENF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Interim dividend declared and paid of BRI S
HK cents 3.61 per share Fh3.61781
(2007: HK cents 3.61 per share) (ZZZEF : 33.615L) 28,097 28,091
Final dividend proposed after the balance ~ RIEEHEFAREETRAREE AR
sheet date of HK cents 5.52 per share BURA R E B FM5.52 81l
(2007: HK cents 6.18 per share) based (ZZZLF : F&6.18781l)
on issued share capital as at the year end 42,962 48,093
71,059 76,184

(i) Actual 2007 final dividend paid was HK$48,099,000 (i)
of which HK$6,000 was paid for shares issued for
employee share options exercised after 31 December
2007.
(i) The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date (ii)
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance

sheet date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

T EELFEBRENARARRER
48,099,0007T * E A ##6,0007TTifE R
NR=ZTTLE+-A=+—BETEN
R BRI 31T Z AR ROBLE.

RERRBIKNORAE - WARNEEBE
RRAE-

FARE L —BBEFEE 0 MK A B
AR RSB ARE

during the year
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous FRG E—HRFEEE
financial year, approved and paid o RS BORER B
during the year of HK cents 6.18 per share  &f% 6.18751ll
(2007: HK cents 5.10 per share) (ZZ2Z+F : FR5.10784) 48,099 39,685
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12. Earnings per share 12. BRER
(@) Basic earnings per share (a) ERELREF

FAGRERAF THRBEARA AL @R
RSB AR FAEE 71,115,000 7T
(ZZZ L F: B#76,204,00078) &
AEERND BT LB INE TS
778,276,000 f% (=T Z+4F : 778,154,000

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$71,115,000 (2007: HK$76,204,000) and
the weighted average number of 778,276,000 ordinary
shares (2007: 778,154,000 shares) in issue during the year,

calculated as follows: BOIBEA T A RETE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZE AR -T2
2008 2007
—EENE T F
000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—HBER{TZER 778,210 778,076
Effect of share options exercised BITEERETE 66 78
Weighted average number of ordinary R+=—A=+—H
shares as at 31 December T BARINAE AR K 778,276 778,154
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BERESERF

FASKREERNIREBEAR R LBRK
BRE NI REFAER 71,115,000 (=F
THF 1 #% 76,204,000 7T) AR B BHITE
AR T 19 2 778,276,000 % (=2
+4F : 781,023,000 %) IRIA T HRAHE -

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$71,115,000 (2007: HK$76,204,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 778,276,000
(2007: 781,023,000 shares), calculated as follows:

BB e TR E ()

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2008 2007
—EBENE —ETHF
000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary W+=—A=+—H
shares as at 31 December @A I AR & 778,276 778,154
Effect of deemed issue of shares under B ARIEARA RBRETE
the Company’s share option scheme REEREZITRG
for nil consideration (Note 21) KIS (it 21) - 2,869
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ZA=+—BE@k
shares (diluted) as at 31 December IR RR S (R #E) 778,276 781,023
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13. Fixed assets 13. BEEE
(@  The Group (a) ZA%EEH

Platform Interest in

hardware leasehold

and land held

software, for own

computer use under

and office operating

equipment Furniture lease

Leasehold ~ FAEH and RS

improvements K& Motor fixtures RERE

HEy BER vehicles HRR Building Subtotal BAZHEE Total
$5E BOERE "E %8 ¥ N LiER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BMTn  AYTn  BETn  BMTn BT B¥Tn B¥Tx

Cost: A

As at 1 January 2008 R-EENE-A-H 13,606 222,795 486 2,884 33,250 273,021 6,018 219,039
Additions RE 460 5,368 214 n - 6,173 - 6,173
Disposals it - (2,995) (350) - - (3,345) - (3,345)
As at 31 Decemher 2008 HR=EBENE+=-A=t-H 14,066 225,168 410 2,955 33,250 275,849 6,018 281,867

Accumulated depreciation: ZFriE :

As at 1 January 2008 R=Z2ENE-5-R 8311 213219 441 1,870 4513 228474 302 228,866
Charge for the Year FERFTERY 1,048 5,199 67 365 1,662 9,241 142 9,383
Disposals it - (2977) (350) - - (3,327) - (3,327)
As at 31 Decemher 2008 HW=ZENE+-A=t+-H 10,259 215501 158 2,235 6,235 234,388 534 234,922
Net hook value: REFE

As at 31 Decemher 2008 R=ZBNF+=A=1-H 3,807 9,667 252 720 21,015 41,461 5,484 46,945
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&
(@)  The Group (continued) (a) ZA&EE@#E)
Platform Interest in
hardware leasehold
and land held
software, for own
computer use under
and office operating
equipment Furniture lease
leasehold  FAREH and RELE
improvements PEGE Motor fixtures RERE

HEM BiR vehicles GRKE  Buldng  Sublotal BRAZHE Total
¥5E  BRERE B #E BT I a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT A% Tn  BETr  A%Tr  B%Tr BT BTk

Cost: KA

Asat 1 January 2007 R-E5+F-F—H 13,193 229,487 486 2,766 33,250 279,182 6,018 285,200
Additions NE 579 4,158 - 176 - 4913 - 4913
Disposals HE (166) (10,850) = (58) = (11,074) = (11,074)
As at 31 December 2007 W=ZE+E+-A=1—H 13,606 222,795 486 2,884 33,250 273,021 6,018 279,039

Accumulated depreciation: Rzt :

Asat 1 January 2007 R=ZE+F—F—-A 6,603 217,130 3% 1,576 2910 228,614 249 228,863
Charge for the year FRRERY 1,867 6,999 46 347 1,663 10,922 143 11,065
Disposals HE (159) (10,850 = (63) - (11,062) - (11,062)
As at 31 December 2007 R=ZEE+F+-A=1—H 8311 213,279 441 1,870 4573 228474 392 228,866
Net book value: REFE

As at 31 December 2007 R=ZET+F+-A=1—H 5,295 9,516 45 1,014 28,677 44 547 5,626 50,173
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&)
(b)  The Company (b) ARF
Platform Interest in
hardware leasehold
and land held
software, for own
computer use under
and office operating
equipment Furniture lease
Leasehold ~ FAEH and RS
improvements K& Motor fixtures RERE

HEy BER vehicles HRR Building Subtotal BAZHEE Total
$5E BOERE "E %8 ¥ N LiER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BMTn  AYTn  BETn  BMTn BT B¥Tn B¥Tx

Cost: A

As at 1 January 2008 R-EENE-A-H 13,534 209,048 486 2,197 33,250 259,115 6,018 265,133
Additions RE 357 5,227 214 41 - 5,899 - 5,899
Disposals it - (2,995) (350) - - (3,345) - (3,345)
As at 31 Decemher 2008 HR=ZEEN\E+-F =+-H 13,891 211,280 410 2,838 33,250 261,669 6,018 267,687

Accumulated depreciation: ZFriE :

As at 1 January 2008 RZZENE-F-H 8,275 200,630 440 1,793 4573 215,711 392 216,103
Charge for the year FRRERY 1,925 4,662 68 356 1,662 8,673 142 8,815
Disposals HE - (2,977) (350) - - (3,327) - (3,327)
As at 31 Decemher 2008 HR=ZENF+=-A=1-H 10,200 202,315 158 2,149 6,235 221,057 534 221,591

Net book value: REFE:

Asat 31 Decemher 2008 R=ZFNE+=A=1-H 3,691 8,965 252 689 21,015 40,612 5,484 46,096
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&
(b)  The Company (continued) (b) ZARARE]#E)
Platform Interest in
hardware leasehold
and land held
software, for own
computer use under
and office operating
equipment Furniture lease
leasehold  FAREH and RELE
improvements PEGE Motor fixtures RERE

HEM BiR vehicles GRKE  Buldng  Sublotal BRAZHE Total
¥5E  BRERE B #E BT I a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT A% Tn  BETr  A%Tr  B%Tr BT BTk

Cost: KA

Asat 1 January 2007 R-E5+F-F—H 13,121 216,060 486 2,679 33,250 265,596 6,018 271,614
Additions NE 579 3838 - 176 - 4593 - 4593
Disposals HE (166) (10,850) = (58) = (11,074) = (11,074)
As at 31 December 2007 W=ZE+E+-A=1—H 13,534 209,048 486 2,797 33,250 259,115 6,018 265,133

Accumulated depreciation: Rzt :

Asat 1 January 2007 R=ZE+F—F—-A 6,580 205,265 3% 1,503 2910 216,653 249 216,902
Charge for the year FRRERY 1,854 6,215 45 343 1,663 10,120 143 10,263
Disposals HE (159) (10,850 = (63) - (11,062) - (11,062)
As at 31 December 2007 R=ZEE+F+-A=1—H 8,275 200,630 440 1,793 4573 215,711 392 216,103
Net book value: REFE

As at 31 December 2007 R=ZET+F+-A=1—H 5,259 8418 46 1,004 28,677 43404 5,626 49,030
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BlEEE(Z)

(c)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: () WIEBREFESHFTMAT :
2008 2007
—EENE —TE+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
The Group and the Company REBRADQT BEET T BT IT
In Hong Kong REB
— medium-term leases — R HAFRE 5,484 5,626
5,484 5,626
Representing: Rk
Interest in leasehold land held for own use  ARIF&EHERH1EE A
under operating leases ZTHE TikERS 5,484 5,626
5,484 5,626
14. Interest in subsidiaries 14. FT{EMI B A T REE
2008 2007
—EENE —TE+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - BAAE 3,010 10
Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected the results or TEEEAREFLEERNEENTB AR EN
assets of the Group are as follows: T
Proportion of Proportion of
Place of Particulars of ownership ownership
incorporation issued and interest held interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation paid up capital by the Company by a subsidiary Principal
company AL K BEBTR HBARQ T BB AR activity
HELAR AR BB B HMERKFE BAzEZEIH BrEzES FEEWR
Digi-Sign Certification Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - Certificate
Services Limited B HK$1 each Authority
B ZEREER AT 10,000 i & E services
1 TR BEZBRY
Trade Facilitation Hong Kong 100 shares of 100% - Dormant
Services Limited B HK$1 each EmEER
100 iR AR E 1B
PR 1 TR D
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14. Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

14. Frit B~ Bl (42)

Proportion of

Proportion of

Place of Particulars of ownership ownership

incorporation issued and interest held interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation paid up capital by the Company by a subsidiary Principal
company AR A K BEITR HAD T BB TFE activity
B AT BB BB B HMERAKFE BAzEZEIL BzEzE FEEWR
It RENZBE TR PRC RMB3,000,000 100% = Provision of
ARG HR AT s AR # 3,000,000 7T e-commerce
and e-logistics
services
RHEFEHER
Bk
REEZ FBEEER PRC RMB500,000 - 51% Provision of
NI A AR ¥ 500,000 7T e-commerce
and e-logistics
services
REEFTEER
BT ARTE

VA BB AL 1(e) FRRE R IZHIHB R A -
W ERAREHM EREAARE AR

Each of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(e)
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

# ERNBRARAKESHSMEBHER - 2%
RASEF R D E TS AT AP B 2 R S ek
MRRNEEEFERBEXERERNEERAR
B 1% AT

W Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover
constituting less than 1% of the respective consolidated totals.

* R EEM AN EBELE -

Company registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.

A RBAREREAEGIRNTIEGERE -

A This is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture, over which the Group has control.

Investment in subsidiaries IR B R RIIRE
RZZTENF » AR RN BRI AENB A
LA E A BB E T s R E T YR RISH TS
R sRs| AR E - WiFida (EEh B E &%
EZER -

During 2008, the Company set up two subsidiaries in the PRC to
introduce its business and technical experience in e-commerce and
e-logistics services in Hong Kong to China and through collaboration,
to help promote and develop these services in China.

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

R TSR I RE

15. Interest in associates 15. Fiih Bt g N R
The Group The Company
AEE b NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —EETLHF ZBENF ZTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PRI BT T PR T IT
Unlisted shares, at cost IE LR - HREANE - - 104,474 82,280
Share of net assets EBIEEEFE 24,797 43,020 - =
Goodwill Bk 17,742 = - =
42,539 43,020 104,474 82,280
Less: Impairment loss JB MBS TE - - (62,837) (39,260)
42,539 43,020 41,637 43,020
The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which AT 5B A RS - ZEFAREAIELT
are unlisted corporate entities: T
Percentage Percentage
of Group’s of shares
Place of Particulars of effective held by the
incorporation issued and interest Company
and operation paid up capital REBEATE bN/NE| Principal
Name of associate AR ERTHE BRER Fris 4 activity
HBEARER =E ik RAFEE Bo Aokt FEEK
i-Legal Service Ltd Hong Kong 5,034,962 35% 35% Provision of
B ordinary shares online legal
of HK$1 each services
5,034,962 % REAELE
HiRHEE VAR RRTES
P 1 T AR
KAZ Computer Hong Kong 100 ordinary 25% 25% Provision of
Services Hongkong a5 shares of data centre
Limited HK$1 each services
100 f% RULEUE
HiRHEE LIRS
S 1 TR

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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15. Interest in associates (continued)

15. Pr{b & N Rl ()

Percentage Percentage
of Group’s of shares
Place of Particulars of effective held by the
incorporation issued and interest Company
and operation paid up capital REEFT{h NN Principal
Name of associate AL K ERTHE BRER FriERR {7 activity
BEATEH =3 RAFE Elagsd Epalsd FEEWR
Digital Trade and Hong Kong 135,240,000 57% 57% Provision of
Transportation B ordinary shares electronic
Network Limited of HK$1 each messaging
(“DTTNCo”) 135,240,000 A% routing and
HISE S ERBEE RS HiREE transformation
BRR2AF ([DTTNCo]) R TR services
RIEET
MEFEER
R RS
Guangdong Nanfang PRC RMB10,000,000 20% 20% Provision of
Haian Science & i AR 10,000,000 7T e-commerce
Technology Service services
Company Limited RMHEFES
(“Nanfang”) R 7%
B 78 R RHR RS
BRAR(TEAL)
(@) Acquisition of an associate (a) UWiEHE=AR]

During 2008, the Company acquired a 20% equity capital
in Nanfang at a consideration of RMB20 million. This is to
form a strategic equity partnership for further development of
electronic commerce business.

Goodwill of HK$17,742,000 has been recognised on the
acquisition of a 20% interest in Nanfang and represents the
excess of amount paid for the interest in Nanfang over the
provisional fair value of the Group’s share of net identifiable
assets of Nanfang as at the date of acquisition. The analysis
is provisional and amendments may be made to the goodwill
amount in the period up to 12 months from the date of
acquisition.

Deemed disposal of an associate

During 2007, DTTNCo allotted new shares to third parties,
causing the Group’s equity interest in DTTNCo to be diluted
from 58.33% to 56.57%. Such allotment gave rise to a deemed
disposal of part of the Group’s interest in the associate,
resulting in a gain on the deemed disposal of approximately
HK$345,000 in 2007.

RZTZENF  ARFIUREBEARKE
20,000,000 7Y #& F 75 8 20% AR A fg 4
AR T AR K SRS IR B R
HE— P HRETHEER -

EEERAEAEEHEANANAEBE
17,742,000 7T &) 74 & B 7 W 88 B 75 20%
ERFRRER mBERNKERS  A5H
¥ MR AR AL A S B G A 2 A
BRIEEFEZEREATEMRLNS
o o T AR - WA 54K B iR
#1218 A A B S B S BIEHER]

RAHEHE AR

RZZTZ 4 - DTTNCo A F = HECE A
7 o Eitt - A BT {5 DTTNCo & B 12 F
58.33% M E56.57% ° L EEEWRE
& D AN R B AT EEE A R AR o
It AEERZZTLFEARAGALE
RIS UL RS 4975 345,000 7T °
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15. Interest in associates (continued) 15. Prih & N R fEw (&
(c)  Summary financial information on associates (c) HEATNIEERTE
Loss for
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue the year
BE af &N WA FEESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
2008 —EEN\E
100 per cent 100% 93,785 (26,694) (67,091) 68,579 (34,937)
Group's effective interest REBER R 34,754 (8,479) (26,275) 16,130 (22,084)
2007 —TELF
100 per cent 100 % 94,862 (28,061) (66,801) 29,913 (41,415)
Group's effective interest AEEERER 48,969 (8,193) (40,776) 7,637 (23,972)
16. Other financial assets 16. HttB K& E
The Group The Company
AEH ¥ /NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF ZBENFE —IZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT BEET T BT T
Non-current FEFRE
Unlisted equity securities BBRIFEETARA
—in Hong Kong, at cost BE  RKAE 57,500 57,500 57,500 57,500
Less: impairment * JBORE ™ (57,500) (57,500) (57,500) (57,500)
Current TRED
Held-to-maturity debt securities REBBIN ETRIEE
— listed outside Hong Kong ZHHRERRES - 69,342 - 69,342
Total FEE - 69,342 - 69,342
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16. Other financial assets (continued) 16. Hth B EE (&
As at 31 December 2007, the held-to-maturity debt securities RZEZLF+A=+—H FBERINFEE
represented investment in US Treasury Bonds listed outside Hong B R ESEAFERE BB LMz ERBRERE
Kong. The US Treasury Bonds matured on 31 October 2008. HokE XBEBREGFER_ZZN\FT+A
=+—HEIH-
The Group and the Company
REBEERAT
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EE+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Market value of listed held-to-maturity B LMz FHEER A ER
debt securities BHME - 70,282
* The amount includes impairment loss on investment in OnePort Holdings * b 8t % ® 45 7 OnePort Holdings (BVI) Limited
(BVI) Limited (“OnePort”). The impairment loss was measured as the ([OnePort]) L& BH ME ERBEEIE - REES
difference between the carrying value amount of the financial asset and the B DERZBEHMBEENEREE - EREEEUN
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return Eﬁ%;ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ@iﬁ$ IR EMAFRKRIE S
for a similar financial asset. The Directors of the Company consider the M2 EERERTE o 2NQ RIE B AR OnePort /3%
investment in OnePort to be fully impaired. A2 EURE -
17. Trade receivables 17. EEUWERTX
Credit terms granted by the Group to customers generally range from AEE—RETRF—EHEZ—([EANEER -
one week to one month.
An ageing analysis of trade receivable, based on the invoice date is as BREEZEEH - BREFAERESITHT ¢
follows:
The Group The Company
REE FN/NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF 2T tF ZBENF ZZTtF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT
Current BNER 17,838 19,064 17,536 18,780
1 to 3 months overdue BA—EAEIR=EA 482 284 409 164
More than 3 months BA=EAEIR
overdue but less +=f@A
than 12 months overdue 81 33 65 33
18,401 19,381 18,010 18,977
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17. Trade receivables (continued)

17. BUYARK (&)

The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 23(a).
All the above balances are expected to be recovered within one year

and they are generally covered by customer deposits received from
customers (see Note 18).

18. Trade creditors, accounts payable and other

AEENEERRENAZ23()

BH DS RTR —FRKE - KRBT
Frefteviz e miRE (A2 18) -

18. BENAERM - ENREREME

payables NFRIE
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETTLF ZBEN\F ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BET T BT T
Trade creditors FERTEREX 9,190 7,701 9,190 7,701
Customer deposits BREFZE
received (Note 18(ii)) (B 18 (ii)) 171,603 171,658 171,603 171,658
Accrued charges and FERT RS RE A
other payables eI FIE 39,253 42,120 36,880 40,254
Amount due to a e —FE
subsidiary LIS PNGIE O - = 10,337 6,904
220,046 221,479 228,010 226,517
(i) Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with ()  REER - T ARNRRZE M ERN IR
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date. R FEBRFRBRIR D AT ZA T -
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETTLF ZEBEN\F ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BRI BT Vot amav
Due within 1 month or — & A R EI B
on demand TR EE 9,190 7,701 9,190 7,701

(i)  Deposits received are monies received from customers before
they are allowed to make trade transactions through the use of
the Group’s systems. Generally, customers are only allowed to
incur transaction charges up to the amount deposited with the
Group. Deposits are refundable to customers on demand.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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19. Provision for long service payments 19. RERBEEE
The Group The Company
TEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EETNFE —ZTTLF ZBENF IZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PR TIT BET T PR T IT
As at 1 January n—A—H 2,173 2,000 2,038 1,882
Released/utilised BfRkEEA (944) (343) (944) (343)
Provisions charged to AU e R 0BR
the income statement KIS 1,053 516 1,033 499
As at 31 December ®R+—-—A=+—H 2,282 2,173 2,127 2,038
20. Employee retirement benefits 20. EERKER
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF AEBBBCEBRFIEATBSFENELD) - BIR
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes BCEBERKEOIDERANES - RumsEAE
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the @8l ([BESFE] - BRESFTEABIXT
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined ABENERERFERNGTE - BRERESFTE
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. EEXrEESEAIAAEELEERNEEEEA
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each B 5% MR MEBABRNE AHR LR AEEK
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ 20,0007t ° EEE AT EIfEH R 1E - HREEE
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of 8FfA °
HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREEEZRAER

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2
August 2000 which was amended on 11 September 2001 and
26 November 2002 respectively, and a share option scheme on
14 October 2005, whereby the Directors are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at consideration of
HK$1.00 per grant to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

ARBIERZZEEFN\AZBHRMNE R AFRA
RRAT SR ERT B (DRI =T —FNA+—8
k=TT =_F+—A=+XB{E5]) ' YERZ
ZERFT AT ARAERESS - Bk - E
ERENEESFAEEEE - BEASEET
FAIARMES - BN REA R FRMDAER
- REABHE1.007T - BHEREEZTEAR
ERBAA R —RILBAR

Annual Report 2008 —ZFN\FEH -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS FRR M 5

21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. URELEE 2RO ER (&)

(continued)

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
can only be exercised after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%) respectively from the commencement of the
trading of the Company’s shares on SEHK being 28 October 2005,
and have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the grant was
made. The exercise prices per share for the options are HK$0.90 and
HK$1.25.

The share options granted under the share option scheme vest
after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 36 months (100%)
respectively from date of grant and then exercisable within a period of
10 years. The subscription amount payable in respect of each share
upon the exercise of an option shall be determined by the board of
directors and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK's daily quotations sheet on the date, which must be a
business day, of the written offer of such option (the “Date of
Grant”);

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(i) ~ the nominal value of the shares.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT

IRHR B IR A BB AR A AR A 5 B4 ) O s AR A -

AZEERFE+A=-+N\BARRRIRGBFARE
EABMIAEELRT T @A —+tHNEAR
=+ MERE - HADRIFTHEEF 25% - 60% K&
100% HIRRAA + BERRHE B % A AR T R EA+4F o
FERRRE TRV B RRAR DT T(EME - A 0.90 T Kk
B 1.257T °

ERERESES @A  —THEEAAR=TX
A% - REBEBIIERT B8R A0 RBBAED BI5RE
25% 60% K 100% * BEi& FI T HImTTE
TTERB A T 2 ot B AR AR ST RO R BB SRS /R
BE=gHET  ATERAIRTIEEFRS

() RERENEEZHEH(EREAH] E
PBEAREER)  REEBMXMEBARER
Fr3IB D ER BB R FrE T (E

(iy EBEEREAMAIAELER  REBBER
P B R(ER PSR D FE BB B X AT F
BRTE - &

@iy AAEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS FRR B 5

21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. URELEE 2RO ER (&£
(continued)
(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (a) FAGTBEBREBRRMKRGOMEENER
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical REZ G R AR

delivery of shares:

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments options
= Vesting conditions BBIRRER
L ] Y BHE
Options granted to directors:
ERTESHERE :
—on 24 November 2000 2,162,500 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R=ZEEZTF+—F=+HNAH 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
B=ZEZTRF+A=+/\H
Er 1218 A (25%) ~ 24 & A
(60%) & 361# A (100%)
—on 13 December 2001 2,162,500 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R=EE—F+=-_A+=H 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
B-ZEETRF+A=-F+/\HiE
5H1218 8 (25%) ~ 241& 8 (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—on 14 October 2005 1,379,745 12 months (25%), 10 years
— R-ETRF+A+EOA 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
B-ZEERF+A=-+/\HiE
5H121E 8 (25%) ~ 24 & 8 (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—on 6 June 2007 2,448,205 12 months (25%), 10 years
— RZZELFHNH 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 6 June 2007
B-ZTZEF, A A
5H1218 8 (25%) ~ 241& 8 (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—on 14 April 2008 3,041,641 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R=ZZEZEN\FMA+IMH 24 months (60%) and 104

36 months (100%)
from 14 April 2008

BT \FMA+IHARE
sH121E A (25%) ~ 241& 8 (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREGEZROER (&)
(continued)
(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the () FRNEEERABEEREINEHOMEENER
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical FEZ G R ARG () -

delivery of shares (continued):

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments options
IA Vesting conditions BREN
A SRR EREH
Options granted to employees:
ERTEESMNERE
—in 2000 1,805,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— R-TETT 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BT RF+A=+/\H
#Er12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
X 361& A (100%)
—in 2001 1,845,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
- RZZZE—F 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE-ETRF+A=+/\H
#ET12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
X361E A (100%)
—in 2002 765,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R=Z=Z = 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
B=ZEETRF+A=+/\H
T 121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—in 2003 305,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— R-TE=4F 24 months (60%) and 106

36 months (100%)

from 28 October 2005
BE=ETRF+A=+/\H

#ar 1218 A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)

K 361& A (100%)
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. URELEE 2RO ER (&£
(continued)
(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the () FRNGEEEABEEREINEHOMEENER
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical PEZ G R AR ()

delivery of shares (continued):

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments options
= Vesting conditions BBIRRER
#A SRR EREH
Options granted to employees (continued):
ERTFEENERE(E) :
—in 2004 105,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— RZEZWF 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE=ETRF+A=+/\H
#Er12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—on 14 October 2005 9,667,566 12 months (25%), 10 years
- RZETRFTA+MA 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE-ETRF+A=+/\H
#ET12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60% )
N361E A (100%)
—on 19 March 2007 6,431,062 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R_EE+F=A+ANH 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 19 March 2007
BT+ F=A+NH
HEF12ME A (25%) - 2418 R (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—on 14 April 2008 7,251,121 12 months (25%), 10 years
- RZEZEN\FEA+IMA 24 months (60%) and 104

36 months (100%)

from 14 April 2008
BE-ZEZN\FNA A

T 1218A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)

K361 H (100%)

39,369,340
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

21. UREBEE 2 ROER (&)

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

(b)

PR B Mo ETERENT

2008 2007
—EZN\F —ETF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
InEEY MR E IS B AR

TEE 2R 1T1EE Qe

HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
BT T B BT TFH&
Outstanding as at 1 January R—A—HrEH 1.19 29,077 1.09 21,314
Exercised during the year REFERTITE 1.00 (96) 1.10 (134)
Granted during the year AEEANRH 1.01 10,292 1.42 10,285
Forfeited during the year REZ R 1.29 (978) 1.34 (2,388)
Outstanding as at 31 December M+ —A=+—H K& 1.14 38,295 1.19 29,077
Exercisable as at 31 December A+=-A=+—8 A[{7{E 21,693 12,118

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was HK$1.00 (2007:
HK$1.32).

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2008 had exercise
prices ranging from HK$0.90 to HK$1.43 (2007: ranging
from HK$0.90 to HK$1.43) and weighted average remaining
contractual life of ranging from 2 years to 10 years respectively
(2007: ranging from 3 years to 10 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on a Black-Scholes model. The
expected life of the option is used as an input into this model.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. R REE 2RI ER (&
(continued)
(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued) (c) PBRENAFEMRRRE)
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLE
Fair value at measurement date Rt 2 BN AFEE HK$0.11 HK$0.28
BE0.11 T B 0.287T
Share price I (B HK$1.01 HK$1.42
HB#1.01 7T B 1 .42 7T
Exercise price TE(E HK$1.01 HK$1.42 to
BH1.01 7T HK$1.43
142 T
RS 1437
Expected volatility (expressed as TEERR 18 (F=48 1 e aF R HT R X
weighted average FTA 2 IR Em=51)

volatility used in
the modelling under

Black-Scholes model) 34% 37%
Option life (expressed FERR I 2 (I A ) AT R HT R =X
as weighted average FrAZ ik g m251)

life used in the
modelling under

Black-Scholes model) 5 years (E£F) 5 years (F4F)
Expected dividends THEARR 2 10% 7%
Risk-free interest rate H B 1| 2.43% 4.18%
The risk-free interest rate used was based on the Exchange EEGRTE - AL GRESEE AE%E -

Fund Notes.

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility FEHR R IR 2R 5k iR (IR IR R i s
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life HEAAME) MEY AR BERK IR
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to B 1 A BEEE A RV TEHREA B T LA A& o FEEARR
future volatility due to publicly available information. Expected BTGB ERE AR - EXERHNTEER
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the A EE - OlpEE AT E N ERGE o

subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimates.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This BN AR IE RIS R MR - 5T EFTUWER RS
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair N ERR T BH - WET AULBEES - B
value measurement of the services received. There were no B AR A B T ) 4 o

market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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22. Capital and reserves 22. EXR#E
The Group (a) ANEE
Minority
Share Share Capital  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  reserve profits Total DHEE equity
BEA ROBE Ex@EE REER @t EE ERAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$E'000
BETT AT BETr AETr AT BT AT
As at 1 January 2007 RZZZt+F—H—H 155,615 117,722 2,757 53,129 329,223 - 329223
Dividends approved in LFER
respect of the previous BOERR S
year (Note 11) (Hiat11) = = - (39,685)  (39,685) - (39,685)
Shares issued under share REREREE
option scheme B2 R 27 120 - - 147 = 147
Equity settled share-based MRS 2 R E
transactions (Note 21) (Hrz#21) - - 2050 - 2050 - 20%0
Profit for the year AEERF = = - 76204 76,204 - 76,204
Dividends declared in respect AEEERE
of the current year RERRE - - - (28,091) (28,091) - (28,091)
As at 31 December 2007 RZTTLF
+-A=+—H 1655642 117,842 4,807 61,557 339,848 - 339,848
As at 1 January 2008 R-EENF-F—H 155,642 117,842 4,807 61,557 339,848 - 339,848
Dividends approved in LEER
respect of the previous year HERS
(Note 11) (HieE11) - - - (48,099) (48,099) - (48,099)
Shares issued under REBRETE
share option scheme BIZBG 19 165 (98) - 86 - 86
Equity contribution from DHRR
minority shareholder EEHE - - - - - 268 268
Equity settled share-hased DRELHEZRHER
transactions (Note 21) (Hat21) - - 1,627 - 1,627 - 1,627
Profit for the year REEEA - - - 1,115 71,115 12 71,121
Dividends declared in respect rEECHRE
of the current year REHRE - - - (28,097) (28,097) - (28,097)
As at 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+=A=t-H 155,661 118,007 6,336 56,476 336,480 280 336,760
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22. Capital and reserves (continued)

22. XK fw#fE (&)

(b)

The Company (b) AAHE]
Share Share Capital  Retained
capital  premium reserve profits Total
BAR RoRE BEAXRRE KRBEA wst
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$S000 HK$000
BT AT AB¥Txr BT BT

As at 1 January 2007 RZZEZ+F—HA—H 155,615 117,722 2,757 56,791 332,885
Dividends approved in EFEER

respect of the previous AR B

year (Note 11) (Hfa£11) - - - (39,685 (39,685)
Shares issued under share RIEIEAR AT &)

option scheme BITZ IR 27 120 = = 147
Equity settled share-based LA HEAEE 2

transactions (Note 21) R17EMH (HaE21) = = 2,050 = 2,050
Profit for the year REEm T = = - 64,964 64,964
Dividends declared in REEERE

respect of the current year KRR IEE - - - (28,091) (28,091)
As at 31 December 2007 R_ZTZTLF

+=—A=+—8H 155,642 117,842 4,807 53,979 332,270

As at 1 January 2008 R=—BEBNF-H—H 155,642 117,842 4,807 53,979 332,270
Dividends approved in tEFER

respect of the previous HERE

year (Note 11) (et 11) - - - (48,099) (48,099)
Shares issued under RIBBRAELE

share option scheme BITZBR D 19 165 (98) - 86
Equity settled share-based URELEE 2

transactions (Note 21) RE R (Hfat21) - - 1,627 - 1,627
Profit for the year REEEF - - - 69,353 69,353
Dividends declared in REED RS

respect of the current year TREHRE - - - (28,097) (28,097)
As at 31 December 2008 R-BZN\EFE

+=A=+—H 155,661 118,007 6,336 47,136 327,140
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22. Capital and reserves (continued) 22. EXKf#EE(E)
(c)  Share capital (c) MRA
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () EEREZHFTHAK
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
No. of No. of
shares Amounts shares Amounts
REE k-] & EE k-
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T A% BET T TR BT T
Authorised: JEIE
Ordinary shares of S EEEE0.207T
HK$0.20 (ZZT+5F : A%
(2007: HK$0.20) each 0.207T) Ay E A% 1,250,000 250,000 1,250,000 250,000

Ordinary shares, issued ERTRHBEZBER

and fully paid:
As at 1 January n—A—H 778,210 155,642 778,076 155,615
Shares issued under BRI B AR T &

share option scheme BT RD

(Note 22(c)(ii)) (Hiat22(c)(ii) 96 19 134 27
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 778,306 155,661 778,210 155,642
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LB AR R A R ET R RIRE MRS - E
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled BRARRAIAE ERERHE —REHIE—F - F
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. BELARBRNES T AHERNARR TEEZS
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the &R ©

Company’s residual assets.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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22. Capital and reserves (continued)

22. XK fw#fE (&)

(c)

Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
96,000 (2007: 134,000) ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of HK$86,000 (2007: HK$147,000)
of which HK$19,000 (2007: HK$27,000) was credited
to share capital and the balance of HK$67,000 (2007:
HK$120,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$98,000 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account in
according with policy set out in Notel (n)(ii).

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at

() MA@

(ii)

(iii)

FR o ERAEEE 86,0007 (=ZF
T4 B 147,0007T) 2 REBETT
- ARBEANQTF96,0000% (=T F
+4F : 134,000 %) Ei@AR - HpA
19,000 7T (ZZ T4 : B 27,000
To) sF ARBRA « 84584 ¥ 67,000 70
(ZZZ+4F : #¥120,0007T) A5t
AB& 173 (BB o 7% 98,000 L2 1R
BENT A 1(n)(ii) 2 B VE A A (i
REBERMDEERE -

REEE AR RARITEBRENF

balance sheet date: HA -
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
1TEH TEE S gE] A
24 November 2000 to —EEEF+—A-tHAE HK$0.90
13 December 2011 —E—%+=A+=H 090 7T 9,038,000 9,150,000
14 October 2005 to —ZETRF+ATHARE HK$1.25
13 October 2015 —E—hFt+A+=H B 1.257T 10,537,330 11,047,311
19 March 2007 to — T F=FA+HhHZE HK$1.42
18 March 2017 —E—tF=A+N\H B 1427 6,437,407 6,846,305
06 June 2007 to —ETEHFEXNANBE HK$1.43
05 June 2017 —E—+HFxARH RS 1.437T 2,032,962 2,032,962
14 April 2008 to —EEN\FHA+EAE HK$1.01
13 April 2018 - \FMA+=H B 1.017T 10,249,224 =
38,294,923 29,076,578

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ/\FER -
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22. Capital and reserves (continued)

22. XK fw#fE (&)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by Sections 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(i) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share
based payments in Note 1(n)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$47,136,000 (2007: HK$53,979,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK cents 5.52 per ordinary share (2007: HK
cents 6.18 per share), amounting to HK$42,962,000 (2007:
HK$48,093,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for
the foreseeable future. The Group has no external borrowing at
the balance sheet date.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed with due regard to the capital management objectives
of the Group.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT

(d)

FEENTE R RS%

() BAwE
B& 175 (E AR B A SEC BB A &SI
FEABBIKATHE o

(i)  BAEE
BARBEREDE T ARATEE M
RITEBRIENER S ETEE - M
IRIRE B &L 1(n)(il) Th LA RR 19 s E R
W MR AN S ER TR A
FE o

A IR
N_FEENFF+_A=+—H"  qftH
ETARRIREFEANBEEERER
7 #547,136,000( Z T T £ F: B
53,979,0007T) - REHB1E - EFEURER
HESREBSS2BIN(ZTT LA
f%6.18751(L) - AEUE 42,962,0007T (=
TEH4F A% 48,093,0007T) © ISR
HEERAWKRERRAE -

BEAEE
AEEEREANFEAZRREREER
FELE M) RIERAEE N R R
REMNEFHMEE - AEBREE R
HEINBIEE -

AEEAZEAETEBR  THMEHNHEE
RAHE -
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23. Financial risk management and fair values

23. TEIEREER A FE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited by

the Group’s financial management policies and practices described

below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Credit and payment policy

When registering as a subscriber, a customer is automatically
assigned with a credit limit based on the amount of its deposit
or bank guarantee and is normally given credit periods
ranging from one day to one month. The amount of deposit is
determined on a customer-by-customer basis, depending on
its usage of the Company’s services. Generally, if a customer
reaches or exceeds its credit limit before the end of the normal
billing cycle, it may be given an increase in its credit limit.
However, if a customer is in default of payment for whatever
reason, its account is automatically suspended from operation
until all outstanding charges have been fully settled. For that
reason, customers may also, and often do, place deposits with
the Company from time to time to cover their charges.

There is, however, no credit policy for the Company’s ad
hoc customers who are required to pay the relevant charges
(including service charges, service centre handling fees and
Government fees) in full when using the Company over-the-
counter services.

The Company does not have a general provisioning policy
in respect of trade receivables. Specific trade receivables
considered not recoverable will be written-off.

EREENEREKBES 8 LER RY
BE - FERINERR - ZFRBIIAREER
TXERNMBEERBRRERABR

(@ EER
$%@E’J1§EH@IE7‘F§TEH&E§%{ o &
BEEE —EEFEEER  UFEEEZ
ZEERK -

1EERITHBE

BEFPELRAFE  AEEeREAR
TRRITEFREE  BHREFEFPHE—RE
FEHEE FEHARRY—BE—[EA
T - ARBEREFZFRARARBEH
ERE MENEEKREEE —KRM
5 MERPELREMNRBHMERESD
SBEARFHNEERE  HEEREAR
ERR - AT - WE TP EEFIEHmIE
RS- HEFPRISEPEEEF B
EFREBNREENERRL - BERN
e BEFRENEEEEARAFER
& UETHXNER -

AW > ARAAESREETFILEER
K REEFPEMBEERGE - AR
2RMNEHRER  BREREE  RET
LFEERBTRE -

o

AR R IR R U BR AR AR S — AR B R R
R o AR A SR UK ] O 4 TE FR LR
AT LA -
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23. Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

23. TRIAMEER A VEE)

(a)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any
significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet. Except for the financial
guarantee given by the Company in respect of a revolving credit
facility to an associate of the Company as disclosed in Note 26,
the Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of income-earning financial assets, the following
table indicates their effective interest rates at the balance sheet
date and the periods in which they reprice or the maturity
dates, if earlier.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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23. Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

23. TRIEAMEER A VEE)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis (continued)

) MEEL &)

BT F EBEFEESHT (&)

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBENF —EREALF
Effective One Effective One
interest year or interest year or
rate less rate less
BEANE —FIUT BERFIE  —FHAT
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BT T BT T
Maturity dates for assets R EH AT R E #
which do not reprice EENEEN
before maturity ZH8 A
Cash and bank deposits & MIRITIF 2.79 439,483 1.97 374,706
Held-to-maturity debt securities  #8 Z 2|Hi B &15E 5 - - 4.57 69,342
The Company
¥iN/NE |
2008 2007
—EENF ZEELF
Effective One Effective One
interest year or interest year or
rate less rate less
BREAME —FmUT BEBRME  —FHAN
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BT T BT T
Maturity dates for assets REIHAATE R B 5
which do not reprice EENEEN
before maturity ZI8 A
Cash and bank deposits H e MERITIFAK 2.78 437,297 1.97 374,422
Held-to-maturity debt securities  #58 Z 2| Hi B &5 5> - - 457 69,342
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23. Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

23. TRIAMEER A VEE)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to any significant currency risk as
its revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are predominately
denominated in the Group’s functional currency.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and foreign currency risks, the Group
aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on the
Group’s earnings. Over the longer term, however, permanent
changes in foreign exchange and interest rates would have an
impact on consolidated earnings.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that an increase or
decrease of one percentage point in interest rates would
increase or decrease the Group’s profit before tax by
approximately HK$4,552,000 (2007: HK$3,747,000) so far as
the effect on interest-bearing deposits is concerned.

SN e

HRAKENRA  AX  BE;AEY
UAREENEEEHE - At ASEL
BERNEAEKRR

B ESEE DT

AR E B 2N R MSNE R BREF - T3 LARUK
MRS HASERNNTERBR - B
REME - BRMARAKARE) - Y
FABNELYE -

R-ZZENFE+-_A=+—8 " %iteF
FHZENS - MEF R AT
—EE S 2 - AMSET AN S E /O BR T AR F
152 38 ANk R D H0 HE 4,552,000 L (=&
T4 B 3,747,0007T) °

Fair values f AFE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially RIEENER_BEE+F+_A=1—
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2008 and B BRTYSEN BRI ARNKRE
2007 except as follows: BEAFLEHEEANS 5
2008 2007
—EENF —EEALF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
BREE A¥E BREE NEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T BT T BT T
Held-to-maturity BHAEZEREHE
debt securities B ES - - 69,342 70,282

The held-to-maturity debt securities were matured on 31
October 2008.

Estimation of fair values

Fair values for the unquoted equity investments are estimated
using the discounted cash flows for similar listed companies
adjusted for the specific circumstances of the issuer.

Fair value for the unquoted equity investments is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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24. Commitments

24.

i

(a)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2008
not provided for in the financial statements amounted to
HK$1,305,000 (2007: HK$2,678,000). They are mainly in
respect of computer equipment.

Operating leases

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of property rentals are
payable as follows:

(a) BEAREE
R-ZEENFE+ A=+ BRRUBR
REB N E R AR L R 1,305,000 70
(=T F: B¥26780007T) * HEE
BRI E BARE -

(b) WEHE
AREE ST THBELREHRE
AR BT

2008 2007

—EENF ZETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Within one year —FR 1,883 126
More than one year but —EREBLNAE

within five years 1,187 201

3,070 327

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
three years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

25. Material related party transactions

25.

AEBRBLEEEHEMZAEYE - O
—RULH/B—E2=F UAREERE
BB GRREENE - ERBEABTE
EIAES -

EXBEALRS

During the year, transactions with the following parties are considered
as related party transactions.

Name of party
BREALTER

Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”)

MRAREEE ([MRAREER])

KAZ Computer Services Hongkong Ltd (“KAZ Hong Kong”)
KAZ Computer Services Hongkong Ltd. ([KAZ & 1)

Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo”)
HBIEE 5 EBRWEAR AR (TDTTNCo])

Systech On-Line Limited (“SOLL")
BRIEARHZAR AR ([SOLLI)

RAFE - BUTATETZRZBERBEBEA
TR5 -

Relationship
e

Shareholder of the Company
ZA/NG i

Associate
SN
Associate
SN

Investment

®E

Annual Report 2008

sz s=x [T



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS FRR M 5

25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(@)  Recurring transactions

BRI HMREMB T RENR D RERI - K
SEBETHEANMEALZZNT

EITHR S

FAl
JE

w

2008 2007
—EENF ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T BT
Facilities management expenses = A KAZ &
paid/payable to KAZ S, TR R
Hong Kong =53 8,679 8,677
Management fee, rental income 21 DTTNCo Y2ER,~ FE U A
and other income EREE - MHe
received/receivable L ONSEE PN
from DTTNCo 617 673
Business Support System 2 1A DTTNCo YZER eIk
(“BSS”) fee received/ MEBZIERER
receivable from DTTNCo (IBSsH &M 2,944 2,944

The Government holds approximately 12.29% of the
Company’s issued share capital in the name of FSI.
Accordingly, the Government is a shareholder of the Group.
Transactions between the Group and the Government
departments or agencies of FSI, other than those transactions
that arise in the normal dealings between the Government and
the Group (such as payments of taxes, leases, rates, etc), are
considered to be related party transactions.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group

include:

(@)

On 29 December 2003, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Government to provide front-end
Government electronic trading services in relation to
import and export declarations required under the
Import and Export Registration Regulations, dutiable
commodities permit and cargo manifests in respect of
cargoes carried by air, rail or water for a term of five
years expiring on 31 December 2008 (unless earlier
terminated in accordance with its terms) (“2003 GETS
Agreement”). The Government paid the Group a nominal
price of HK$1 in return for the Group performing the
services in accordance with the terms and conditions
set out in the agreement. On 17 July 2007, the 2003
GETS Agreement was extended upon its expiry on 31
December 2008 for a further term of one year to 31
December 2009 for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the
Government.

On 9 December 2004, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Government to provide front-end
GETS services in relation to Certificate of Origin and
Production Notification for a term of four years expiring
on 31 December 2008 (unless earlier terminated in
accordance with its terms) (“2004 GETS Agreement”).
The Government paid the Group a nominal price of
HK$1 in return for the Group performing the services in
accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the
agreement. On 17 July 2007, the 2004 GETS Agreement
was extended upon its expiry on 31 December 2008 for
a further term of one year to 31 December 2009 for a
nominal price of HK$1 paid by the Government.

EITHR 5 (&)
ELEAITUNERBEATRZ B

—ET=F+_A-t+NB  FKE
SR AFETSL R - B R O (BRD)

FLBI PR TE BOHE H O $REA TR AT AT
BINEFE SR - AP mET Al &
RAEMRZE - #ESOKENE DR
B p@EAMRE - WHRZETN
FH-A=+—HER - EREEK

FIRF R IR —EB=FGETS
Jﬁ?ﬁ#ﬁj) * BINE A EERE =T
B R MG BT IR M AN & [ 52
MBI THERRE - R-_TTL
i‘tﬂ +T+tB  ZZET=FGETS%

FHRRNR-_ZBBNF+-A=+—
EIE'JH%LE-ﬁ?:_; ZNE+ZRH
=+—HEE - BUFE BB
1T BERE -

—TTNE+ZANA  AEEEK
FEET N ek - BEEHIRRE RAEER
ﬂiﬁﬁhfmmM%B%% 1
HARNE ZENF+=A
:+—5Fﬁvﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂh$ﬂ
LIEBRIMNT =TT MEGETS ez l) ©

U B BE A 52 AR #pa P a2 165K
&%WEGW%H$E@§H%%1
THEERE - RZTTLF LA
++H ZZEZEMFGETSHHAR
TR=TTN\F+=_A=+—HZH
ER—FZ2_TTNF+=A=1—
BEIH - BFE RS A8 10
ZERE -
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBREALTRZ (&

Recurring transactions (continued)

On 30 December 2008, the Company entered into a
contract with the Government to renew the 2003 GETS
Agreement and 2004 GETS Agreement to provide front-
end GETS services in relation to import and export
declarations, dutiable commodities permit, cargo
manifests in respect of cargoes carried by air, rail or
water, Certificate of Origin and Production Notification
for a term of 7 years from 2010 to 2016 (“GETS
Il Contract”). Subject to the sole discretion of the
Government, the GETS Il Contract shall be extendable for
one or more GETS services with a period not more than
two years. The Government paid the Group a nominal
price of HK$1 in return for the Group performing the
services in accordance with the terms and conditions set
out in the contract.

On 9 December 2004, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Government to extend the agreement
dated 10 October 2002 (as further amended by a
supplemental agreement dated 29 December 2003)
for the provision of front-end GETS services in relation
to the Textiles Trader Registration Scheme for a further
term of one year expired on 31 December 2005.
The Government paid the Group a nominal price of
$1 in return for the Group performing the services in
accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the
agreement. As further amended by the letter of renewal
dated 24 December 2005 and the letter of renewal dated
29 September 2006, the agreement was extended to 31
December 2007 for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the
Government. On 17 July 2007, the Group entered into
an agreement dated 13 July 2007 to extend the letter
of renewal dated 29 September 2006 upon its expiry on
31 December 2007 for a further term of two years to 31
December 2009 for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the
Government.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Each of the 2003 GETS Agreement and 2004 GETS
Agreement included an arrangement whereby the Group
is required to collect Government fees and charges on
behalf of the Government in relation to certain trade-
related documents to which each such agreement
related and in respect of which the Group provides
GETS Services. These fees and charges collected from
customers are paid over to the Government within the
next working day.

On 12 April 2002, the Group entered into an
agreement with KAZ Hong Kong for the provision of
system management services such as computing
services, system security and other related services at
HK$640,000 per month for an initial period of eight
years. Subsequently, on 16 January 2003, the Group
entered into a price adjustment agreement with KAZ
Hong Kong for the provision of services at HK$651,600
per month for a period of eight years commencing on 1
January 2004.

On 23 October 2004, the Group entered into a licence
agreement with the Government (as represented by
the Commissioner for Census and Statistics) under
which the Group was granted a licence to use the
2005 version of the Hong Kong Harmonised System
codes and descriptions (“HKHS") for provision of
the GETS services. The licence agreement is of one
year's duration, and the Group paid HK$22,575 to the
Government for the licence.

The agreement was extended to 31 December 2009
under which the Group was granted a licence to use the
2009 version of HKHS and the Group paid HK$18,230 to
the Government for the licence.

On 31 August 2005, DTTNCo entered into an agreement
with the Government under which DTTNCo agreed to
design, set-up, operate and maintain a DTTN system on
the terms and conditions set out therein.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EITHR S (&)

—EE=FGETSHEEA—_TTNF
GETS = B IE—HTHE « Bkt -
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mEFPEURERRKE AR T—
BTV R ERIAT °
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(@) Recurring transactions (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

On 31 August 2005, the Company, FSI and DTTNCo
entered into an agreement to provide for the
management and operation of DTTNCo and to regulate
the rights of the shareholders of DTTNCo.

On 17 May 2006, the Company and DTTNCo entered
into a Business Support System Development and
Service Agreement (“the Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to develop and operate a
business support system for DTTNCo. The business
support system is an information system covering
customer registration and administration operation,
customer service operation and billing operation. The
Agreement commenced on 17 May 2006 and shall
expire on 31 December 2008. Pursuant to the terms
of the Agreement, DTTNCo shall upon the signing
of the Agreement pay the Company initial costs of
HK$2,140,000 for the development of the business
support system and the related information system
infrastructure set-up. The average monthly subscription
fee was HK$196,399 for the second half of 2006 and
is HK$164,192 for 2007 and 2008. The maximum
annual subscription fees for 2006, 2007 and 2008 are
HK$3,640,000, HK$3,690,000 and HK$4,950,000
respectively.

On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into
the Road Cargo System (“ROCARS”) Contract (“the
Contract”) with the Government pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to set up a call centre and provide
call services for the implementation of the ROCARS of
the Customs and Excise Department of the Government.
The Contract terms is five years commencing from the
production rollout of the ROCARS originally scheduled
for September 2009.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT

(a)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBREALTRZ (&

(b)  Amounts due from/(to) related parties

(b) U (FER) AL

IR

2008 2007

—EEN\FE —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Government (Note25(b)(i)) BT (B 25(0)()) (7,627) (6,139)
SOLL (Note 25(b)(ii)) SOLL (Hz£25(b)ii) (220) (220)
KAZ Hong Kong (Note 25(b)(ii))  KAZZE# (H1a£25(b)ii) 3,616 3,616
DTTNCo (Note 25(b)(ii)) DTTNCo (#fat25(b)(i)) 5,147 1,440
916 (1,303)

(i)  Amounts due to Government represent transactions fees
collected on their behalf and payable on the next working
day and other expenses payable.

(i) Amounts due (to)/from SOLL, KAZ Hong Kong and
DTTNCo are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note
9, is as follows:

(i) BENBRFCESBBRFEBRNRZSE
RREMENFS  ZFERRKE
& — AT ERBNEAT -

(i) (M), FEUYSOLL - KAZE B &
DTTNCo B FIE S « % 8 K AR
BRAEEE -

) FEEBEAENHE
UTREZEEABNME - BEREAN
ASWBECAARRESEN « MREA
IWBECRETREHEENHOHIA :

2008 2007

—EENF ZETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T BT

Short-term employee benefits HHERERF 10,885 11,170
Post-employment benefits BRIEZEBET] 57 54
Equity compensation benefits e N 633 547
11,575 11,771

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 5(a)).

e @t A [MEEKAN(RATZ 5@)) -
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26. Contingent liabilities

26. EEE

(a)

In January 2003, the Group provided a bank guarantee amounting
to HK$1,170,000, in respect of a revolving credit facility granted
to KAZ Hong Kong. The guarantee is a continuing security and
shall not be released or discharged until the expiration of six
months after the payment, discharge or satisfaction in full of the
guaranteed liability.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2003 GETS Agreement, the Group
has obtained a Performance Bond line of HK$2,000,000 from a
bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance
of the 2003 GETS Agreement by the Group. The performance
bond line facility bears commission rate of 0.95% per annum
subject to a minimum of HK$3,000 for each renewal and is
secured by a charge over deposit in the amount of HK$2,120,000.
The Performance Bond was replaced by a bank guarantee on 9
August 2007 at the request of the Government under the same
facility as the Performance Bond. The facility is subject to review
by 15 November 2009.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2004 GETS Agreement, the Group
provided a bank guarantee in the amount of HK$120,000 from a
bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance
of 2004 GETS Agreement by the Group. The guarantee is provided
under the same facility as in Note 26(b) above.

Pursuant to the terms of the GETS Il Contract, the Group provided
a bank guarantee in the amount of HK$2,120,000 from a bank
as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance of
GETS Il Contract by the Group. The guarantee is provided under
the same facility as in Note 26(b) above.

Pursuant to the terms of the ROCARS contract, the Group
provided a performance bond in the amount of HK$569,986
from a bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due
performance of ROCARS contract by the Group. The guarantee is
provided under the same facility as in Note 26(b) above.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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+—A+HB®E -
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B A —RERITEUS I 120,0007T HISRITHE
R AEEASEZ AR ST MNE GETS

e M AT R LA HEAR o SR BRI (LR
EXhtaE 26(0) RAMEEREE -

RIRGETS 16 A 2 63 - NEE BT
GETS 5 A MBATIR 5k B —KRITHVER
1THERB™ 2,120,000 TLIEAIER © a2 ER
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27. Non-adjusting post balance sheet event

2]. GEHEARAR 2EH

(a)

(c)

After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK cents 5.52 per share (2007: HK cents 6.18 per
share) for the year ended 31 December 2008, amounting to
HK$42,962,000 (2007: HK$48,093,000). This dividend has
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

The Company proposed to acquire 58,740,000 shares
of DTTNCo (“Sale Shares”), representing 43.43% of the
issued share capital of DTTNCo from the Financial Secretary
Incorporated, the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Hong
Kong Association of Freight Forwarding and Logistics Ltd,
the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council, the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, the Indian Chamber of Commerce
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Exporters’ Association (“the
Vendors”).

On 18 February 2009, the Company has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (“the Agreement”) with the Vendors,
pursuant to which the Company will purchase, and the Vendors
will sell their shares in DTTNCo at HK$0.388 per Sale Share,
at a total consideration of HK$22,791,000. On 9 March 2009,
an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting to approve
the terms in the Agreement.

Upon the completion of the proposed acquisition, DTTNCo will
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 16 March 2009, the Board has adopted a Share Award
Scheme (“the Scheme”) as a means of rewarding and retaining
employees at the grade of assistant manager or above within
the Group and to encourage senior employees to have, through
the award of the Company’s shares under the Scheme, a direct
financial interest in the long term success of the Company. The
Scheme supercedes the current share option scheme.

(a)

(b)

(c)

REERK EFHRABE_TT)N\F
ToA=ZT - HULESFERERHEER
552N (= ETLF : §iR6.183E1L) -
REUEH 42,962,000 7T (Z BT 4F : B

48,093,0007T) ° M BN E H I KR
BAfE -
AARRZRAFHARREZE HETE

e FEEEVREHSERAF B
BREAZES AP a8HE
me - Aatnme((ER)KEDTTNCo
258,740,000 /% B& 2 ([ &R n 1) + 1k
DTTNCo B B 1T AR 43.43% ©

_;T-Enﬁ A+NR - AREIHEET
—HEERZ(HED Bt A2
T%HLA AR EB 22,791,000 T Ui -
“’“Eﬂ-rﬁ:.,\EADTTNCOZHXTﬁ BRFE
BADEEA%0.3887C - R=ZZETNE= A
= z%m&%aﬁéﬁxi%%m@trﬁ
B —IE IR SR AL e 2 K o
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NEE T 22BN B AT
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— AR REET &I ([5181)) - FREER &
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PR - RAR EICDHRBRITZBIE
st -

Annual Report 2008 —ZFN\FEH -



Notes to the Financial Statements

M REER R MY o

28. Accounting estimates and judgements

28. Bttt K3 Ef

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 21 contains information about the assumptions and the risk
factors relating to fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Interest in associates

As explained in Note 1(f), the Group’s and the Company’s
investments in associates are stated at the Group’s share of
the associates’ net assets, and at cost less impairment losses,
respectively. As at 31 December 2008, the carrying value of the
Group’s and the Company’s investment in DTTNCo was HK$19
million, which was arrived at after taking into consideration any
impairment of DTTNCo’s assets.

The continuing losses incurred by DTTNCo and its performance
to date continuing to fall below expectations have given rise to
an indication that the carrying value of the non-current assets of
DTTNCo as at 31 December 2008 may be impaired. Under these
circumstances, Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 (“HKAS 36”),
Impairment of Assets, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, requires DTTNCo’s management to estimate
the recoverable amount of the non-current assets and provide
for any impairment. The non-current assets of DTTNCo mainly
comprises of computer platform, hardware and software. As such,
DTTNCo’s management has estimated the recoverable amount of its
computer platform, hardware and software based on the fair value.
The recoverable amount represents the best estimate by DTTNCo’s
management of the higher of the value in use or the price such
assets could obtain in an arm’s length transaction with an unrelated,
knowledgeable and willing party.

An impairment loss has been reflected in DTTNCo’s financial
statements to write down the carrying value of certain non-current
assets to the fair value, and equity accounted for in this annual report.
Any adjustment to the recoverable amount of DTTNCo’s non-current
assets would have a direct impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
profit for the year and net assets at the balance sheet date.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ZEZEETEZERAT
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29. Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the annual accounting period ended 31
December 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to result
in a restatement of the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

In addition, the following developments are expected to result in
amended disclosures in the financial statements in the first period of
adoption:

HESLUBHRETIZAS - StMASERM
—LEAEET  FTREA R RE - AMBE_TTN
FTAZ+RLEFERRER  TRREL
B HmEAPERA

AEERIEF EMER] - FIE2ER M7
> BERIEEERERYESSELNTE

S RHmNAERRRAZEE] - LR N2
B TP e8BAKENKEERERMBARE
5l] e

BSh - A TR T S BB B R E R
B IS ATHE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5I B

HERBKRN

BHEEEN

HK(IFRIC) 13 Customer loyalty programmes 1 July 2008
B (BRI S P BHETE —ETEN\FtA—H

BEZES)REE 13%

HKFRS 8
MR E 2RI 855

Operating segments
BEDHS

HKAS 1 (revised 2007)
ERGFTERE 15
(ZEZLF(ER])

2 MATEE

Presentation of Financial statements

1 January 2009
—EENF—H—H

1 January 2009
—EENF-HA—H
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Five-Year Financial Summary
hEFEMBEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE ZZTHF ZZTTRF ZZTRFE ZZTTWF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT BT T
Results E4E
(year ended 31 December) (Biz1+=-A=+—H
UFE)

Turnover T 232,605 245,082 248,300 249,101 279,706
Profit from operations pedyral 110,199 120,144 119,300 110,293 123,637
Finance costs B TSR ZR - - - - (3)
Impairment loss on investment in 3E_ TR ABHEE

unlisted equity securities 2R fEEE - - (10,000) - (40,000)
Share of results of associates ISR NCIE S (22,222) (23,955) (7,694) (787) =
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEHBRA A

subsidiary Wz, (FE518) - - = 347 (55)
Gain on partial disposal HEHE QAR

of an associate M U - 345 622 = =
Profit before taxation R A1 e A 87,977 96,534 102,228 109,853 83,579
Taxation THIA (16,850) (20,330) (19,012) (18,456) (20,586)
Profit for the year KEZHF 71,127 76,204 83,216 91,397 62,993
Attributable to: LATR A P& -

Equity shareholders of AN ERIERA A 71,115 76,204 83,216 91,397 62,993

the Company

Minority interest DB R 12 = = = =
Profit for the year ANF T 71,127 76,204 83,216 91,397 62,993
Assets and Liabilities EERAEE
(as at 31 December) (R+=—HA=+—H)
Total non-current assets EmEEELRTE 89,484 93,193 193,040 154,520 37,350
Total current assets TMENVEE4REE 472,760 475,403 369,464 380,515 449,700
Total assets BEE 562,244 568,596 562,504 535,035 487,050
Total non-current liabilities IERB A ERTE (3,000) (3,127) (3,596) (6,539) (5,705)
Total current liabilities MBI A ELREE (222,484) (225,621) (229,685) (224,877) (222,388)
Total liabilities FEN=E (225,484) (228,748) (233,281) (231,416) (228,093)
Net assets BESFE 336,760 339,848 329,223 303,619 258,957

ESRETESERAR

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited



Investor Relations

REERIK

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its institutional
and individual investors. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities is provided in the Annual Report. There is regular communication
with institutional and individual investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Company are
welcome and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

AAR—EBBEAREREAAREEFLERED
ARBEBOHBREHTIBERNFR - ARAEHEKIE
MAAREEER o LERA LIRS AEARFRRA
RAER  HEVLEANRELGE AARSRRAEH
ATRHEFEEFR -

Financial Calendar BB
Closure of Register of Members 5-8 May 2009 TERERGBEES ZEENF
AAREBENR
Annual Dividend Payment Date On or about 20 May 2009 FERSIKREH —ETHE
A=+ H=kRi%&
2009 Annual General Meeting 8 May 2009 —ETNFREFEFRE —EFNFHRANH
Listings £

The Company’s shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock of
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 28 October 2005.

Annual Report 2008

AREBOE-_TTAFTA-_T\BEETEBAR
ZARABERLE

—2T\EEH

This Annual Report 2008, in both English and Chinese, is now available in
printed form and on the Company’s website at www.tradelink.com.hk.

Stock Code

D = F T N\ FFRP RSUGRAEGENRIA - IRAl R
A T 4838 www.tradelink.com.hk & °

AR 1CER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — 00536

BHEBAERZMAR AR —00536

Company Secretary NEME
Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred TrEtEfE
Registered Office TSR
11/F & 12/F, Tower B BBE

Regent Centre MEEB63 %
63 Wo Yi Hop Road Bmt LB E
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong 11K 1218

Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

T +852 2599 1600
fB& : +852 2506 0188
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Share Registrars BB FERLE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited EARRREBEASETLAR AT
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Telephone: +852 2862 8628
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Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
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63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Sales Hotline: 2599 1700 Fax: 2506 0188
Corporate Website: www.tradelink.com.hk Business Portal: www.tradelink-ebiz.com
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